MUNDELEIN PARK & RECREATION DISTRICT
REGULAR BOARD MEETING

Monday, August 27,2018
7:30 p.m.
AGENDA
Call To Order:
Pledge of Allegiance:
Roll Call: Dolan, Frasier, Knudson, McGrath, Ortega

Approval of Minutes: Committee Mecting August 13,2018
Regular Meeting August 13, 2018

Approval of Disbursements: Warrants — 082118, 082418, 082718 = $311,531.61

Financials: July

Police Report: July

Correspondence: Thank you card from Scholarship recipient

Old Business:

New Business: 1. Resolution 18-08-01 Authorization for Grant Application

Board Business:
Staff Reports:
Service Anniversaries August: Nan Coutre 1987 (31); Denise LaBeef 2000 (18); April Lohr 2001 (17);
Tony Elasser 2015 (3); Karen Peterson 2009 (9); Jill Miller 1995
(23); John Rogers 2016 (2)
Executive Session: Persennel 5 ILCS 12072 (¢)(1);
Purchase or Lease of Real Estate 5 ILCS 120/2 (¢)(5); Imminent or
Pending Litigation 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(11); Collective Bargaining or Salary
Schedules 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(2)
Action on Items Discussed in Executive Session, if Necessary

Visitors:

Adjournment:




Rules for Public Comment:

A.

At the start of the period for public comment the board President or acting chairperson

will advise the public:

1. The amount of time permitted for public comment;

2. That all speakers state their name and addresses before addressing the Board;

3. To avoid repetitive comments, testimony and general questions; and

4. To appoint only one person to speak on behalf of a group.

Each person will be permitied to speak one time only, unless the President determines

that allowing a speaker to address the Board again will contribute new testimony or

evidence germane to an issue on the agenda for that meeting.

Unless a representative spokesperson is appointed in the manner described in rule D, all

comments from the public will be limited to no more than three (3) minutes per person.

Groups may register a representative spokesperson by filing an appearance form no later

than one (1) hour in advance of a meeting. The appearance form must designate (i) the

number of people the designee represents for the purpose of making public comment; (ii)

the subject matter of the public comments; and (iii) whether the subject begin represented

by a group spokesperson shall be deemed to have waived their opportunity to speak
independently unless the President determines that allowing such a speaker to address the

Board will contribute new testimony or evidence germane to an issue on the agenda for

that meeting,

1. A representative spokesperson who timely files a complete appearance form to speak
on a matter germane to the agenda shall be permitted to speak for three (3) minutes
for each person being represented, up to a maximum of fifteen (15) minutes.

2. A representative spokesperson who timely files a complete appearance form to speak
on a matter not germane to the agenda shall be permitted to speak for three (3)
minutes for each person being represented, up to a maximum of nine (9) minutes.

The Board shall not respond to questions posed during public comment. All questions

shall be recorded by the Board Secretary and a response shall be presented either during

the next regular Board meeting or in writing before such meeting.

All commends must be civil in nature Any person who engages in threatening, slanderous

or disorderly behavior when addressing the Board shall be deemed out-of-order by the

presiding officer and his or her time to address the Board at said meeting shall end.

Approved 4/14/2014 Board Meeting




Mundelein Park & Recreation District
Committee of the Whole
August 13, 2018

The Committee of the Whole meeting of the Board of Park Commissioners of the Mundelein
Park and Recreation District was called to order at 7:00 pm by President DOLAN,

Present were Commissioners DOLAN, FRASIER, KNUDSON, McGRATH and ORTEGA.
Staff present included Executive Director RESNICK and Golf Operations Manager BROLLEY.

Executive Director RESNICK introduced Frank Parisi from Williams Architects to present their
concept of a driving range to the Board. Mr. Parisi reviewed the construction elements and their
cost opinion.

Commissioner KNUDSON asked if the number of hitting bays was typical for a driving range.
Golf Operations Manager BROLLEY said there is no industry standard and that it depends on
the available space at each facility.

President DOLAN asked staff to perform a cost analysis to determine the time it would take for
the golf course to generate enough revenue to pay for the construction of the driving range.

The Committee Meeting adjourned at 7:30 pm,

Secretary



MUNDELEIN PARK AND RECREATION DISTRICT BOARD OF
PARK COMMISSIONERS, MUNDELEIN, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS
HELD MONDAY, AUGUST 13,2018 AT 7:30 P.M. AT THE
MUNDELEIN COMMUNITY CENTER ADMINISTRATION OFFICES,
1401 NORTH MIDLOTHIAN ROAD, MUNDELEIN, ILLINOIS

The regular scheduled meeting of the Board of Park Commissioners of the Mundelein
Park and Recreation District, Mundelein, Lake County, Illinois, was called to order at
7:30 p.m. by President DOLAN and he asked the assemblage to rise and recite the Pledge
of Allegiance.

He then directed the secretary to call the roll. Commissioners DOLAN, FRASIER,
KNUDSON, McGRATH and ORTEGA were present. Staff present included Executive
Director RESNICK.

Commissioner ORTEGA moved to approve the minutes of the Committee Meeting,
Regular Meeting and Executive Session of July 23, 2018, second by Commissioner
McGRATH. President DOLAN repeated the motion and asked if there were any
corrections or additions and none were made. A roll call vote was taken with
Commissioners ORTEGA, McGRATH, FRASIER, KNUDSON and DOLAN voting yes.

Commissioner FRAISER moved to approve Warrants 072718, 080218, 080318, 080718,
081018 and 081318 in the amount of $846,758.41 second by Commissioner ORTEGA.
President DOLAN repeated the motion and asked if there were any questions and none
were raised. A roll call vote was taken with Commissioners FRASIER, ORTEGA,
KNUDSON, McGRATH and DOLAN voting yes.

Correspondence
President DOLAN noted that a thank you letter was received from the Village, as well as
emails from Ted Larkin, Sue Guarna and Sue Devanie.

New Business

President DOLAN reviewed a proposal from Upland Design for writing the District’s
OSLAD grant application. Commissioner KNUDSON moved to accept the proposal from
Upland Design in the amount of $4,500, second by Commissioner FRASIER. President
DOLAN repeated the motion and asked if there were any questions, none were raised. A
roll call vote was taken with Commissioners KNUDSON, FRASIER, McGRATH,
ORTEGA and DOLAN voting yes.

The Board reviewed a new job description for a Business Services Administrative
Assistant position. Commissioner ORTEGA moved to approve the Business Services
Administrative Assistant job description, second by Commissioner McGRATH. President
DOLAN repeated the motion and asked if there were any questions, and Commissioner
FRASIER asked if this was a new position. Executive Director RESNICK said there was
someone already performing these duties, but that there was no formal job description. A




Meeting Minutes
August 13, 2018
Page Two

roll call voie was taken with Commissioners ORTEGA, McGRATH, FRASIER,
KNUDSON, and DOLAN voting yes.

President DOLAN introduced the updated Use of Facilities policy. Commissioner
ORTEGA moved to approve Personnel Policy 5.01 use of Facilities, second by
Commissioner McGRATH. President DOLAN repeated the motion and asked if there
were any questions, none were raised. A roll call vote was taken with Commissioners
ORTEGA, McGRATH, FRASIER, KNUDSON and DOLAN voting yes.

President DOLAN said the District has purchased new chairs for the Regent Center and
has no use for the old chairs. Commissioner FRASIER moved to declare 109 Vicro fabric
stacking chairs as surplus and available for sale via auction, second by Commissioner
KNUDSON. President DOLAN repeated the motion and asked if there were any
questions, none were raised. A roll call vote was taken with Commissioners FRASIER,
KNUDSON, McGRATH, ORTEGA and DOLAN voting yes.

Board Business

Executive Director RESNICK updated the Board on District 75°s request to use Park
District property to the west of Mechanics Grove School for a solar farm. The Board has
several concerns, but is willing to discuss the possibility. The Board was given several
dates to choose from to schedule a L.ong Range Capital meeting. The consensus was to
hold the meeting the evening of September 11. The new resident marketing piece that
will be distributed by the Village was shared with the Board. Several names were
submitted by residents for the new park in the Holcomb subdivision. President DOLAN
asked when a decision was needed. The park sign will not be installed until the spring, so
later this year will be sufficient.

Commissioner FRASIER commented on two recent newspaper articles. One was
appeared in the Daily Herald and about the success the Park District Dancers had at the
national competition and the other appeared in the Mundelein Review and was about
cooking classes at the Dunbar Recreation Center.

Visitors

Sue Guarna addressed the Board about her concern regarding the change in the indoor
pool membership structure. She said she felt it was unfair to pool only members and
favored people who want access to all of the Park View amenities. She acknowledged
receiving an email from the Executive Director about why the changes were being
implemented, but wanted to see some concessions made for pool only members.
President DOLAN told her he appreciated her position and that staff will discuss the
possibility of a compromise.




Meeting Minutes
August 13, 2018
Page Three

Ron Greenberg commented that he was impressed by the driving range presentation and
asked if this project could be eligible for an OSLAD grant. He was told it most likely
was, but that this year’s grant application would be for the development of the Shady
Lane property.

There being no further business, Commissioner ORTEGA moved to adjourn at 8:00 p.m.
second by Commissioner McGRATH. The motion was unanimously approved.

Secretary



0

Halimark Cares
Visit Halmark com/ourplanet

THIS CARD 15 MADE WITH PAPER FROM
WELL-MANAGED FORESTS.

I

08200"29385%" 4

3.89

LAG 3211
(©) HALLMARK LICENSING, LLC
HALLMARK MARKETING COMPANY, LLC

KANSAS CITY, MO 64141
MADE IN U.5.A.

Hallmark.com




...to someone who’

one in a million

9
!




MEETING REMINDER
MONDAY, AUGUST 27, 2018

7:00 pm Committee Meeting
7:30 pm Regular Board Meeting

Action Items
1. Resolution 18-08-01 Authorization for Grant Application

Updates

2018 Second Quarter Financial Report
2016-2020 Strategic Plan Update
Project Updates

One Tax Appeal

o W P —



Meeting Reminder
August 27, 2018
Page 2

Action Items

The District will be applying for a $400,000 grant through the Illinois Department of
Natural Resources OSLAD program. A resolution is required for each application.

Staff recommends adopting Resolution 18-08-01 authorizing the OSLAD grant
application for development of the expansion of Clearbrook Park.

Updates

The 2018 Second Quarter Financial Report is enclosed for Board review.
An update on the 2016-2020 Strategic Plan is enclosed for Board review.
An update of major projects is enclosed for Board review.

One tax appeal was received for 939 Tower Road.




RESOLUTION 18—08-01

OSLAD Grant Program Form OS/DOC-3
Resolution of Authorization

Applicant (Sponsor) Legal Name: = Mundelein Park District
Project Title: Clearbrook Park

The Mundelein Park District hereby certifies and acknowledges that it has the sufficient funds necessary (includes cash
and value of donated land) to complete the pending OSLAD project within the timeframes specified herein for project
execution, and that failure to adhere to the specified project timeframe or failure to proceed with the project because of
insufficient funds or change in local recreation priorities is sufficient cause for project grant termination which will also
result in the ineligibility of the local project sponsor for subsequent Illinois IDNR outdoor recreation grant assistance
consideration in the next two (2) consecutive grant cycles following project termination.

Acquisition and Development Projects

It is understood that the project must be completed within the timeframe established. The OSLAD
timeframe is two years as is specified in the project agreement. The Billing Certification Statement must
be submitted within 45 days of the grant expiration date and the last reimbursement request must be
submitted within one year of the grant expiration date. Failure to do so will result in the Project Sponsor
forfeiting all project reimbursements and relieves IDNR from further payment obligations on the grant.

The Mundelein Park District further acknowledges and certifies that it will comply with all terms, conditions and regulations
of [) the Open Space Lands Acquisition and Development (OSLAD) program (17 IL Adm. Code 3025); 2) the Illincis Grant
Funds Recovery Act (30 ILCS 705); 3) the federal Uniform Relocation Assistance & Real Property Acquisition Policies Act
of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) and/or the Illinois Displaced Persons Relocation Act (310 ILCS 40 et. seq.), as applicable; 4) the Illinois
Human Rights Act (775 ILCS 5/1-101 etseq.); 5) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, (P.L. 83-352); 6) the Age
Discrimination Act of 1975 (P.L. 94-135); 7) the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1988, (P.L. 100- 259); and 8) the
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (PL 101-336); and will maintain the project area in an attractive and safe condition,
keep the facilities open to the general public during reasonable hours consistent with the type of facility, cease any farming
operations, and obtain from the Illinois DNR written approval for any change or conversion of approved outdoor recreation
use of the project site prior to initiating such change or conversion; and for property acquired with OSLAD assistance,
agree to place a covenant restriction on the project property deed at the time of recording that stipulates the property must be
used, in perpetuity, for public outdoor recreation purposes in accordance with the OSLAD programs and cannot be sold or
exchanged, in whole or part, to another party without approval from the Illinois DNR, and that development at the site will
commence within 3 years.

BE IT FURTHER PROVIDED that the Mundelein Park District certifies to the best of its knowledge that the information
provided within the attached application is true and correct.

This Resolution of Authorization has been duly discussed and adopted by the {Sponsor)

on the day of (month), {year)

Name (printed / typed)

Attested by:

Signature
Date:

Title




01IBU3DS 3SED I5IOM 1a3png AT AYS A %00 00T~ |(86'65T°T) & - HIEESS 4 Y- eaH RETS-#E-STT-ET-0T

J3U1eam Buids pjoT 13 13M LIIM JJETS Jama) papaaN Al A %s7'97- |(9zoL’s) [ egzzoor s |ooszitr ¢ |euDsEIS S3FRM SZTS-PE-STT-ET-0T

saumipuadxg|

awos pad|ay aney s8uilno ‘poog usag 591es pooy E AVS A S%r6'ET | €T0ZH'E § | EL9LL’6L S | 0S9SELT S PO04-53(B5 LOTr-¥Z-9TT-ET-0T

1234 S|l Jej 05 SBUIINO 30 NT<Avd|  Avd %{9'99¢€ | 00'5Z8 S {00050 5 | 00SET $ sdil JunnQO 6T8r-0ESTT-ET-0T

DPAAIAI] U] 10U SBY aIeqal Isdag AvaNn]  AavaNn | we6ve [(ZoTerT) S [ 9ss $loos1sT % S$318q3Y-SIUNoasiq yO8y-0E-STIE1-0T

PainadaJ [|2m uaag aney Jeyl wesdoid uoss3| 03 sjuawlsnipe spep| T AV4 Avd %TL'09 | 00'8ST°T S | DO'OEE'S s | opzinT s SUOS53T §109 00FE-97-STT-ET-0T

pajedianue Leyl S49 a3} Uo Spe Bullfas 5530005 Ja1eIID AT Avd]  Avd %00'00T |00°005'T $ [o0000€ 5 [o000ST BUISNIBARY 549 9TTH-rZ-ST1-E1-01

Jeah w1 Ja1e| ded as0() AR 535§ UARIT YIM SEPUIOD| N6 AVINN| AVINN | %p0'TT- [(89'ver'ZT) § | 00°TE9DOT $ | 89'STTETT § |EIUaY UE) JI0D E0TY-T-STT-ET-0T

AJESIaMUUR YISZ SN0 J0) %ET 21BJ JUN0ISIP PUB Y3| dnaud 19dL suoseasomL] N9 AVINN] AVINN | %ZeTe- [(SEE6T9) S| ST90E8  § | 0000SPT  § diysIagWB A RADT OrT1-22-5TT-E1-01

Jead uf 1ale| dn yoled B ‘Fuuds pjod 1 1aMm| NOT AVANN| AVANN | %68'TT- |(SS'PES'ET) § | #ETO0TOT § | 68'969°TT § Ald AP|H-PUM $3Y UON b0TH-1Z-5TT-E1-01

Jead u) Jater dn y21es 3yBiw ‘Funds pjod 1 1am| NOT AvANN| AvaNn | %e®'ZT- |(E9'6E8°ET) § | 00°tY6'E6 S | €9°€BLLDT § ABDH23M 594 UON €0TY-TZ-STI-ET-01

JeaA u] J23ef dn yaled Iyl ‘Jupds pjod g 1em| ik AVANN| AVANN | %66'7T- [lE€TODY) $ | o0veL9T S | £E'SEL0E $ AjleQ ADIH-PUXAM S3Y Z0TY-TZ-STT-E1-01

183pNq §TAd Y1 Ul PASSIPPE A4 ||1M SIU] SUGIIEI0|E Ajyuow yum qoliocd e pip am| 1@3pna uo|  Avd %0891 [S8'6LL'S S| BLwLTOr § | €6wEEVE S JYINI-5aXBL JIEIS3 |BDY POOV-0Z-5TT-E1-0T
SNUIAIY J|05)|

wipng u0|  Avd %Er'1T- | B6E9RLo 5 [(ZE'596°57S) § [(0£'EER'ESS) ¢ 3ury wowwy syJed

PIPIBU JUBWIEEI} PBIM [EDIWIAYI OU PUE MOU Aq sJadwing Jad aseydund o3 pajeda)ly AEAVd]  Avd %86'0L- |(9T'6ESY) S| #8558T 5 [oosesd  § e Yaune] 1eog TRES-BE-QTT-Z1-01
pajadpng uey) Jamo| saseysind J(es peoy AT Avd|  Avd %9E'LY9- |l609zs’e) 3| 1e80LT S [oosETs S BDUEUDIUIEWN AEMPEOY 08ES-BE-OLT-Z1-01

SUCIIPUDD 12M 0] 3Np pauued ueyl Bulds Uy s3aJ3 555 paiued| 123png up Avd %660t [(s4toe’t) S| frgens S | oorooz'y 4 STUNUe|d SPUNOJD 94 ES-BE-0TT-ZT-0T

Yaeaq e puowel] 18 sedad 0ua) 00EES pauueldun|  NZAVENN| AvdNn %beBE | TZ'I¥9T 5 | 1ZTv¥E 5 (000089 S 2DUBUBIUIEY SPUNDID S/ES-BE-OTT-ZT-0T

SUOIYPUOD 1am 03 aNp Bulids ul 5133(010 03 LEls majs|  1edpng uQ Avd %r0'TS- |S0vL9'T) | 56'5091 S | ooosz'e S 000'55>5103l04d Ned L €5-BE-0TT-Z1-01

P3.44M220 Y ueys J3lea yanw puncldierd Juiseydind uo pauued] 3a8prgup|  Awd ws6'sg |[6zev0en) § | Teest's 5 | o0OZEET S Addng-3 D3 puIBAld TOES-BE-OTT-ZT-0T

Ri03S1l] JUBDaJ UC paseq 193png dar Avd]  Avd %L0bT- |(68'€zeT) ¢ | 1192501 $ [oo0szer § BUIESRO-|ANS TSES-BE-0TT-ZT-0T

dulIts 3am 01 INP 3211334 pue ARids 03 J|QE LUSI9M PUR PISN £TOT WoJ) Adojuaaul [ealways]| 1&9png up Avd %St'06- |(0D8T9'E) S | 00'ZEE S | 00000t [ IUIRY-54Z[3I34-SWAYD BrES-BE-QTT-ZT-0T
B2IAJ35 AI5EM PIRA 53] SYIUOW € "S5I8 SYIUOW 7 pARIS admias Jequng| NS TAvY|  Avd %26'E9- [(98'1zv'e) ¢ | v1976'T S [oo'gpEs S u0I1133||07 A5NYaH OrES-BE-QTT-Z1-0T

P3N0 Sey uey} JEAA By} U) Jalluea saseyind joog wiojlun paledionuy|  JPEpng uo|  Avd w06 BE- |l6ssiZT) 6| THbes’s S |oppsgs S SWIOIUN SYES-8E-0TT-Z1-0T

PR3t ueyy Jaje| padeld sem Japae suoyd LIBLWS @I1)0-30-INa 3w dai JOpuUaA 03 anq|  183png uQ Avd %p6'Z9- (572512} S | e¥i9'T 5 | oorozw'e H auoyd |20 LZES-8E-0TT-2T-0T
paadxa ueyy Jaie| Jandwod Juiseydind| 329png up Avd %00°00T- |00 0SS’y $ - s | o0'oss’T H sa1|ddng saIndwod pTES-BE-0TT-ZT-0T

P331230%3 Uel) Jale| palajiiad yiom 1DBJU0Z ouRUAlUleWw JyaH| 198png Lo Avd %00°001- [(00°59€°7) 3 - 9 | 00's9g°T $ W0 W idy BUIP|INg OF25-9€-0TT-21-01

SILNOWE P3IEI0||R PUILAG YILOW JUL JUILUN 5| B[2A3 3 w@Apnguo|  Awd %LS - |lEe o9y $ | ¢9096'9T 5 [oosToiz $ S83|AI25 [PUOISSI04] DTZS-9E-0TT-TT-0T

G1/BUBDS 3583 2510M 138png MOT Avd| Al %00°001- {(bF920'S) $ - S VIW-UIBAH BSTS-HE-0TT-Z1-0T

N30 1M 2SOUREXS [e21Pa) 1eyM Jo ssand e s unozoe siyl| 1eBpngup|  Avg %vies- |[lzrsysyy 5| 8®sco'v S [oosiee ¢ YYH-YIEAH L5T5-FE-0TT-21-0T

suoneandde Jo J3quIny Jamoj 01 3np pauue|d Uey) JeIS [BUOSESS 53| PAUIH MOT AvE|  Awd %rT9T- [IPT00R'E} ¢ | 98'665'6T S | DOOOVEZ S |BuOteas saBeMm SETSFEOTT-Z1-0T

10 3%10mM 01 y215 Jinbal S1UBAa |B)2ads |ELOINPPE “SIUBAI MOUS Y2JEW 'g 4o jealg adid Arenuer] 188png uQl AVdANN %ESPS | 8¥°2197 5 | SYLTFZ S | op'oos'y S 10 2wl (N4 2ep BTTS-+E-O0TT-ZT-0T
saJnypuadxg

JE3A JO LIS 0 Jond umouy Jou uswdinba snidins jo ajes T Avd Avd 10/nI0% | 78'E68T 5 | TR'EER'T Y - 5 desd Jo RS Pasdesd PI8F-0C-0TT-21-0T

JBewep 3|2yaA pue sedal 3dua] Joj ¥wavdl  Avd o/nag | irsery s | crsrIt S - S WasINquiay SWIeD su| Z08p-0E-0TT-ZT-0T

UMDp 553208 3| Joj puewad|  dE AvINN| AvINN | %es6°65- |{B0S5’s) 5 ] ZevEE'R S [ 00°S8EET S youneT 3e0g L TZH-#Z-0T1-2T-0T

198pnq GLAd Y2 Ul PasS2JPPE 24 ||IM Iy 'suoiedo|ie Ayucw yum ol sood e pip ap|  198png uo Avd %er'vy | TLBRE'LT | 909BY'BS S8 | sezerOr  $ AHINI-SIXEL ALIDC0.d POOV-0Z-0TT-ZT-0T
SNUIAIY SHJIBd

2NU3AS) X) EUORIPPE JO NSl € AjuIel ASOAVE|  Avd %YETT | BO'TSZ'EIT $ | BO'RS6'E68 S | 00Z0L0EL § Bur WOR0E UIWPY 33e10d403

Bunuud &) paBlieyd Juiag saidos ‘papasu juswnsnipy| 3aBpngup|  Avd %ra'ss- [(£LegT’T) S| 1ESTO0T $| soeEZT S B5ea7-|ejuay dinbl S9ES-BE-0OT-TT-OT

JeaA JO I3pUIRLBI 10} 1984E] UO 19TPNYg papaadxs sasuadxa Buiuadg puess| 328png uo| AVANN %zl'61E | 60'cET'T  § | 228191 s | gorsgE s SUOIIBI2Y J|GNd tFEES-BE-00T-TT-0T

JaMO] 535UdXD ALed ARPHOH pue Jels v ATAVE]  Avd %90've- |(6T'6T6'T) $ |Z8VILe S| 10wEds  § SUOIIEDY WIS EEES-BE-00T-TT-0T

YO49 JO YduN Fulpuaiie JoN aeavd]  Avd %ELTH |(S2°2ST'E) 5 | egzory S| isssee ¢ Bulujel|-p3 Ju0) DEES-BE-00T-TT-0T

124 papaau 10U sydaLd pue peaysanal| 198png up|  Avd %04'TS- |(e€e9t't) ¢ |299807 s[oooszz  $ BuUljuLld €TES-BE-00T-11-0T

P31330x2 Uay Jemol ARydis pue pulyag Yluouw auc Peddnsuaandwol| 188png ug[ Awd %6T'8Z- |[pb'96L'E1) § [ 95665'TE  $ | OD9eESE § S3DIAIBS JAINAWO) ZTZ5-9E-00T-TT-01

SUOIRROEAU JIRIUOD USILN [PUCRIPPR ‘WNnIo J|qnd Buipledal adiape (€381 A5 A¥INN|  AVSNN %9879 |9s'68%'c S | vozeo's FEF 3 $32IMJD5 |e897 TTZ5-9E-00T-T1-0T

ded 43403 03 32IAI3S (W31 paJinbad voteudisal Ye1sl L AvENN|[ AVIND | %Z6EZ | TOOLL'E  $ | 9L6IS6T  § | SL6SL5T S 530AIBS [PUOISSAJ0Id DTZS-9E-00T-TT-0T

OLIBUSDS 3580 35J0M J38pNg ¥EAVY]  Avd %00'001- [{BE'6¥S'T) § - BEESGEE YIV-YIIPIH BSTS-#E-00T-TT-0T

N300 1)1M sasuadxa |edjpau Jeym jo ssand e slyunode sy L[ 1@Epra u0]  Avy %8555 [{£0'S£8'T) § | T9BBY'T S| B9ELEE S YHH- MIEIH (STS-FE-00T-TT-0T

sanypuadig

JB3A 31 104 PRIIEPNG JIPUN SEM ANLAABI 353.21U BT Avd|  Avd %3976T | TH'8ECE & | THECOYPT S| o0Z'ses'r  § SIBWISAU| 25242301 TOBY-0E-00T-TT-0T

398PNg §TAJ 343 LI PASSIPPE 34 |1 514} “SUGnedoije Ajyiuow upm goliood e pip apn| 199pna UQ| AV %Z¥'vt | 6410821 S [ 86'TZ9TY S| sTOr8BT JYINI Soxe | 533e353 (e3Y ¥00F-07-00T-TT1-0T
UNoLE AA3| 5,423A sNalaald Byl 1 128png NOLAVE]  Avd %04 vT | 6E°ZPE'YZT S | 6ETYORLE 5 [ 00'669'6PE § Sa%eL 23e)53 [2aY T0OP-0Z-00T-TT-0T

anuaAY UILIpY

s | puzieap |[Aejunfaey | tepsg 1A S |eny alA 128png QLA piT L LEES

voday [eueuly JANENY) pUCIas BTOT
1303510 yJed URApUNY



dn yo1ed M Bul| “SeSIES Ul PR1NSAI SJMDNIIsal JUSdal 12EpNg pulyag Uady Sey Yiuow Ye3| 19Epnguoj]  Avd %6ETT- |{06°6ZT S | eg6B6'L  S[ELBITE % %313 OSTS-PE-007-0T-0T
dr Lpaed (1M aul| S251BJ Ul P31|NSal 3JNIONJ1584 3U3dal 1aEpng pulyag uasq sey o woel| 1adpnguo|  Awd wSR'TT- [[26¥8E9) S [ BsTBYLr 5[ 0T'Z98€5 S SWIL LIRd s33eM BTTS-7E-002-0T-07
saunjpuadg
T SUN[ 13UN LIEYS 0} APESJ JOU 9J3M INQ [ty U1 S|BIuad pauueld]  NT AVANG| AWINN %00'ge- |(00°DOT'T) $ | 00°0ST s | oorose’s 3 jEIU3Y AulI9ed TOZY-¥E-2L5-02-07
SJU3A3 MaU puE sajued 0] aNp 2NU3A3J [EUCRIPPE “AlJEa Pan|aTal aNUaAdL Y5 NZ AVH AYA %6978 | 00'L6TTT S | 00°Lp9'9T  $ | 0O'OSE'Y S sAYSHIM-SIIAT 22dS STEP-9T-6TE-02-02
JeaA 3y 104 p19FPNG JBPUN SEM INUIARI JS3131U] ¥OT Avd A4 wbT'egr | €T'6229 S | €162 < | oooaz' ] SIUBLUISBAU| 153431V TOBP-0E-00Z-02-02
3NUA3S 3J0W U1 FuLIg 1Byl SEHYSIOSUCS JUSAS 13N PRINIas sey JojeuIp.oo) diysiosucds A5 Avd Avd %SEOF | EEBOLS S | £E€'8SL8T 5| 000596r  § SI05U0ES OZL1-87-007-02-02
1389pNG §TAd @Y} Ui passaIppe 3q [|IM sIL1 *SUOREJONE Aly3uow yim qofl Jood e pip am| 1a8png uo Avd HSTHT | 240697 5 | TivkiTe $ | 000SO'6T 5 JdInI-saxe] #1157 |eaY +00t-0T-00Z-0Z-07
393PNG GTA4 2U3 Ul PassaJppe aq [|ia sIGE Suonedo)e Ayiuow qyumqollood e pip am [ 198pna ug| AvdNn | %BT'ET- [(02°€65°T) § | 0E'90F0T S| 0O'ODORY S 305-59XE | 218153 [B3Y EQ00F-0Z-002-07-07
WNOWE AA3| 54834 Snoaid ayl 12 183png WST Avd Avd %iT'6 | ST'BEQYr & | ST'9EL’655 ¢ | O0'0OLZIS § saxe | 31151 je9Y T00Y-07-002-0Z-07
INUIAIY UOHEISIVILIPY UORESIISY
eEpngun| AvaNN | %65°06T [[BS0ZZY) S [loosev'd)  § [{iveIET) & U1 wionog Hpny
pajediiue UEy) Jaiues apew Juawhied upny| adpng up|  AvdaNN %Iers | TLT8Z'S 5 | 00006°¢T 5 | 628196 s SIIIAIDS |BUOISSII0Nd DTZS-9E-0ES-9E-0T
saanypuadxy ypny
ANUSAGJ XE) [BUOLIPPE JG 3NsaJ B ALY AS Avd Avd %UTZ8Y- | OE'BEQ'BT § | BTZLlyl S (2099wl § [Ul1 Wonod aueinsy|
s31BWISA 2.8 sasuadxa umouyun| eBpnguo|  Avd %89'vE- |(OTPEL'T) s [06's98'e  s[00000s $ A2U2BURUOD) 06£5-8E-025-FE-OT
s3ujule.) 3.4 JO DBEIUEADE YOD] JeIS AT AV AV %LEEY [(SOTOE'T) S [S6860'T $] 00000 S Buiujes|-p3 0] OEES-BE-0ES PEQT
sainypuadig |
pJemy |0J3U0) 5507 panaday T Avd AV i0/AKI® | 0D0Ds' T § | oooos’t  $ - $ ANUAA3Y ISIN ST8-0E-025-FE-OT
Junowe Ang| s Jeal snainaad suy3 Je 388png ¥4 A Avd %SE'ET | ZO'DEL'ZT 5 | ET'SBO'BOT S| T1656%S6 S sa¥e| 31e353 |29y T00V-0L-0L5-vE-OL
PNUIAIY 2FURINSU]
1@Epng up| A4 %3¢64- | 88E0v'E  § |{S5688) $ [leresz’y) s ‘aun wonog 33lod
WNOWE Ara| 5, 1eah snomasd Al Je 1a8png AZ APl Avd %{T'ET [ seser’e 5 | 9509087 5 | TESBLPE % 53xeL 332153 23y TO0V-0T-0L5-LE-0T
BAUIAIY IO
sasuadxa Julp)ing Joma3 MZAavd|  Awd %S6'89- | BTSKY'S S [[LeEsv'y) S [lsoies)  § 2Ul] WoHoY wnasny
13A payiuap] JULRON AT Avd|  Avd %00°00T- [{00700S'T) & - S [oooosT s sdpjd aaoudui| [ende] DERS-08-005-62-0T
124 papaau 10U siiedal paednuy AT Avd]  Avd %9196~ [{,9°008'T) 5 | 0099 s |£9998T s eoueuduiew Bulp|ing 0/ES-RE-005-62-0T
saunypuatha wnasnpy
S3IP0A YIB2H/SPUIA ALLERH 10§ uoNEdIDILed Jame] Hs Avd|  Avd %eELLT- | £9eBL’sE § | BLLTOST 6 [lsEeiT'oE) 3ur WO0g UCREIZY [EIjaS
juawdinka aseqaund o ueid |1B5| 188png uo|  Avd %00°001- [{o000s'T} S| - 5 |ooo0sT S |ddng/quiewy Juaiudinbl 0GES-RE-244-87-0T
sausuadxa Jamay ‘vonedidiuied Jamo] UM NTAVY]  Avd %SE'59- [108°656'T) S | DO'BED'T S | 0B'BEET  § 5asuadx3 BuljesadQ OPES-BE-TLY-8Z-0T
S2IPOF YYeaH/Spully AydieaH Joj uoledidiled Jamol ¥Zavd|  Avd %6y~ [IFL96LT) S | 94009 sloseeEr S WL Ued S38eM 6TTS-PE-ZLr-82-0T
wEpngup]  Avd %00°00T- [{007000'S) S - $ |ooooo's  § SAeM|lEM AidUI| [ENNGED TrES-08-0L0-BZ-DT
J|ed 01 paaoly siuawascadL Jajua) 0aday| 188pna uoj  Avd %PE'T9- [{25°625'T) 5 | E9'T96 HEYE S s3pja ardw) [e31de) TERS-08-0L4-8Z-DT
paelap aseydind Juadinka Joo4 sSaUlldf  1eEpng uDl  Avd %zevs |lorossy) $|oeery't  $ |ooo00® S yQy 3uawdinb3 [ende] TI85-08-04r-82-01
pa13|dwod 134 Jou s13(0sd vay| 193pnaugf  Avd %00'00%- [{06'529'T) 5 - S [ooszor S 2wl Ind saBep LTS rE-0L§T-0T
saunypuadxl uoneasnay |epads
12Epna uQj  Avd %657 | 11887 § |(20'v26'90T) § [(TB'SOV'TTT) § aur Wonod 4oo
595Uadxa U] 9SESI0LI UE 335 |Im PUE asn 310w juedw AjnrAxg|  398png ug Avd weges- [{ogaet’s) S| orTot'y S | 0ODOSY S adeuieig-uonedii| £LES-8E-LTT-ET-OT
$19440 |B|23ds 0 35NEdAq pajed|due ueylJedh syl ulaaied saseyund apew| 128png uQ]{ AviNn %e0?T | 69'v08'T S | B9'FD8'9T 5 | 00'000ST S s311danS-1A Juawdinb] 0gES-2E-LTT-ET-0T
G0P{Sap sPIURYDISI 3J8|0A 0] UOSEaS 3L Jaye (un Juniep| 198pnaun]|  Avd %00'00T- [{00°002'T) § - S [oooozt ¢ saljgdns Jandwo) $TES-8E-LTT-ET-0T
asn sed jednieu asow pasnbas Juuds plo)| AT AY4NN]  AYANN %aT0S | ELESTT & | ELESHE s [ 0000ET < se0 jednieN TZS-95-2TT-ET-0T
OLIBUADS 3523 95.0M 138png NT AV Avd %00'00T- [{gg091'T! % - BESEEE YIV-UUEIH BSTS-PE-LTT-ET-OT
SWILIAAG [ELUOMIPPE UBIW [ MaJ] |[Bj/iawLins aje| Ja(ews| 123pna upj  Avd %QUEF- |{£2°064'T) S |€THOET S |000OTY  $ 10 |euoseas saBepm 971S-vE-LTT-E1-0T
1932w gof aannadwo) pue Awouoas uo.3s 0) aNp MaJ3 ||n) UBL 5537 Avd]  Avd %ST'ST- |{#r'$99°TT) & | 95'SEE'S9 5 | 00°000°LL  § leuoseas safiem STLS-PE-LIT-EL-0L
1a3Uieam Bulids BloD 1R 19M YUM RIS 13may papaan nod] Awd %IT8I- [{60°015'E) S | T16'ZB'ST S [00EBE'eT § |euoseas saem SZTS-rE-9TT-ET-0T
4R34 ULIIE| 3loAU| SFRI0ls J3UIM | 18ERnA UD|  Awd %ZE'TOT- [{vT'EEG'S) S |(bT'8L) 5 |oostE's S aaugLajUEN B[2IYaA OSES-BE-STT-ET-OT
Jeah uliael ssuadkd| 1eBpng uo| Avd %00'00T- [{00°0£02) % - $ [oooeoT S asuadag J5 JO SpuUalid 9EES-BE-STT-ET-OT
LU JO PEIISUI [B12JILIIOD Al BUIALL AvS X7 %GE'Z6- |(wZ'L¥Z'T) 5 | 9iT01 S {000OSET S 2303504 $ZES-BE-STT-ET-OT
194 pled uaaq 1,usey SOnPe [eJUaL Joy Bxoaul[  38BpNE UD Avd %0T's.- [{zo'zosT] $ | Be'lev $ | oocooT  § Sanddng weidoug eTES-8E-STT-ET-01
194 5|Duad Jo spiedasods Japsoduaney| eEpng uO| A %00°00T- [{00°085'T) % - 5100086 T S saldons 2uiesado OTES-BE-STT-ET-0T
saoloaul jo Buwil| 33Epng uQ| AvY %B6'6E- |(Z5'S6ED) & | 000096 5 | CSSE6'ST S 53314435 549 ETZS-9E-STI-ET-OT
SaWwWo)| pudtea) |Aejunjaey | Jepay A S |enyyy qLs 123png QLA Wmoasy

yoday [elJUBL)) JSUEND PUOIAS RTOZ
13141510 Y44 UIB[BPUNKY




30w SSB|J Ui Buld;3y Pue W0y 0F UIPIIYY 5 ||0JARd U0 3ABS 03 AJES Jels Fuiind Josiasadng Mg Avd]  Avd %S4'2T- |{z8z06's) S | BT'R90'PS 5 | 0O'TLETE S Ued GTTS-PE-Z8T-FL-07
saunjipuadyy 3T g g

@Bprguo| AV %0E'S- | CECEST  § |(05¥9ELZ) S [lzeoeeBT) S BUN WOoWOE JeIe) WEEeY|

$4N0Y Je3s asow uf Buiynsas dn payoid sjequay|  3e8png ug| Avdnn %ITOT {5£7469T & |sSe¢6TZT § | 00DOSOT S awlL Wed saBem 6TTS-FE-082-€7-07

saimipuadxg

€0 AT 125pnq uo 13T 03 32821 4O YIeq 2q ||I% 'LEIS Mojs B Jaye dn payaid sjejuay| 1=3png up|  AVANN wrs 1T |I76'089'T) ¢ | 20vRR'ZT S | 00'S9SWT S |eIuay Aulliaed T0Te-vE-08Z-£2-07

INUIAIY 13U Juaday

AOT Avd Avd %589'69¢- | G0'L99°S 5 | 8TLITY S [lzgspsT) S Ul wanog son3jyy

$35L30XA JOIDRIIUGI 13MD| Ul S1INS3J INUSARS J3M0T "BUIod 10U 2JB SWRIB0.d [BUOIJINISUL WS AL A Avd %zL'65- |[00'86672) 5 | 00TZ0T S | 00°020's s AJS JOid LD SHOdS TZ5-9E-T-22-00
1adpnq a8uey2 0] 218| DO3 3N0 pUNCY 'SS3UISAQ O N0 BuicH SIUU3] 1S3M-PIW WO} SBUIARS NST Avd AV %G7'65- [(5T'970%) % | S8'89£°C ¢ 1 00's6L's < AJIG JOUd SIUUBL QTES-9E-0PT-22-02
sainypuadiy

LIUOL 0 YIUOLL LUOLY SISLUNU JUBWH0IUS JUIISISUOD Hm JESA [ny55a5ang N AVH [XZ] WELLT | ZrSELT S [ ZrrS9E’ST 5 | Q0OEYET S 1RIBY 95T P-97-957-2-0F

Welgosd qnp) SIUU L 3llIWALIRG1T BUIUUN ISNT S53UISNG JO WD 1uaM SIUUILISaM-PIA| HZT AVINN]  AV4NN %5Z'29- [(e£'62ZZ'6) § | L9E6LY s |ooeeseT S SIMUBL OPEP-97-00E-22-00

|[2jloys dn avew oy wes3e,d 13paad may 10a0xa ‘patedidiue Uey) Juswcua amo]| 1e8png ug| AVANN %00 EE- |(aT810'T) 5 {8990 & |00SBOE  § (12q12)5eg YINOA YETH-9T-FET-ZT-0T

anded| ||e4 4o} A1 || sweas ySnous 328 10u pig "paieddiiue se unsiou pip andeai| N7 AvANN| AvdNA [ %00°00T- [fooose) S - s [o00s9T % I2gA3IloA I3y 0] 9ZZH-5T-9TL-TT-0C

A4 SIUUIL JO HI8] Bif} SIASYQ "UN J,UPIP SIULSL IS3M-PIA USYM 3|qE|IBA 33| SaLLf uado pa WwAvd[  Avd %I8TS |05/857 S [oSisyl S [00DOBY S s[e3uay 8inqpues t0gr-v2-Z20Z-22-07
SNUBASY SINBJYIW

sButaes 3em 3L ||ny pue 3nuaAas duwied |euolIppY| WOEAV] AV %ER'90T [ 0E0PT0T S | vv'98T'6E S [ TOYERT 5 aulT woned $ueq/y

Aejapauyigesisiyl] 122pnauoj AV %65'Z8- |{(SZ'91E'T) § | 05442 s|seeesT 8 suuojiun dwe) SYES-8E-rbZ-12-07

uosuedwod Aue 3ARY 1,UpId PRIAFPNAISAQ 'seale Weldold |eanas uaamgay 3ds ApueI NE AV AV %Er68- |[{98°SvZ'T) § | vZivT S | 09°ZeET g 2122|3 dwie) §TZ5-96-bZ-T7-07
JuawAed uo anss| FulLUIl “INC UIAS pue o 3Je SUONED0|Y S22y duy pjaly ase asayL| 19Bpng uol AWENN %I1S'SET | sY'628'T 6 | sk'ELTE 4 | 00°09E'T 3 AJS Joud duwie) OTZS-9€-t7Z-T2-02

JEQUNQ 38 1IN0 MaU Fuisn Jei5 'saljddns Jandwod papaau 10U aey AT AV Avd %00°001- [{0000Z'T) § - $|ooooeT  § sa(ddng 12andwo) +TES-8BE-12Z-12-07

uciiezjue2J03] pUB JUsWaJNz) Ksiaadns 03 anp jlosded o sBuiaes ¥OT AV Avd %99°ET- [(bZ'vL8'E) § | IP6BPYZT S| SOERERT  § salJeles T115-E-122-12-02

193pNng uo aq pue dn yojed | jeaded ANy uy ues de) “anss) Suiw 198png up| AV %S8'86- [(00'E9r'T) 5 | 00°LT s|ooosb't S sa8eM 3J1eayl SUBP|IYD BTTS-FE-BTZ-12-0C

P3332d¥3 ey} 453329 BUI0P SWUBJIFD. 1340 $355E1D 13BJIU0D 0} AD) ISNBIAA 128pNG JaA0 08 PINDYS] A5 AVINN|  Avd %E8'B6- [(E8'Z08'E] § [ 0OS¥ slegase  § AJS Joid Bold 1INPY/YINOA 0TZS-9E-512-12-0Z
|€J 343 U1} 35 33900 [iIM "o aIe suopeso]ly| 1aBpna ud| AviNn %97T'857 [ 00'88F's S | DDETSL s | ooszTT B dx3 uopnadwo) $EES-8E-L02-12-02

SBSSE[D 2J0U “IUALU||0JUS JayBiy Osjy "JosiAsadNs jo 550] 10} J2A00 01 SInoy Jels pappy| N8 AWINN]  AvINN %ILvy | s66TES S [ SEev?LT S| 0SLTETT S sodem, 2IueqQ 611S-vE-L0Z-TZ-02

wesSe.d #ngising JuIsn spIf 553] JUU|GHID 13MOT WZ AYd Avd %l6'SE- [(009vrE) $ | ODPSEY s | ooooRG9 [ SBJAIRS JOId 21D Ul OTZG-9E-907-TZ-07

asuatxa JYNI |BUCHIPPE Ul 53|nsal ([0JAed pasea.ou| AVINN|  AVINN %IETY | 28'9LTT ¢ | LBv6DE s | 008167 5 JUWI 21D W E5T5-FE-902-12-0C

13pOW ye3s u) saUELD YUIM DS J9A0I3) PINOYS ')|BS 10 IBIAREY pajeBpng Jo 9B SUGREY| AT AVANN| AVANN %029 [ vozie’s $ {vorot'sz S| 00SERET S sadep, 11D U BTTS-FE-902-TZ-07
sanyupuadig

dLWe3 Ua3) WOl anuaadl | PRy "PR)0adXa SBM JBUM 1940 ATDedeD 353.2U1 01 SN pamo|je Jequng ASEAVd|  Avd WL [ SLTPE'OT $ | SLEOPETT $ | 00T90E6 S 5934 dwe) AeQ ¥y Zp-9T-FFZ-TZ-07
lled Ul on ayew 03 A1 palaadxa Uey] SpIY 5527 aUNF Ul paledo|je anuaaz. ‘Alnf ur aseid ool AT AVINA| AVIND %00°'00T- [(00'D00E) % - S { 00°000'€ B S334 2Jiealy ] sulJp|Iy] LZEP-9T-BTT-TT-0T
pa3sadxa uey) Janjaq Auiuung 33UBRS FuINEQ LB BU003 - SWEIB0ld NS Avd A %rT'86 | O0TEYE 5 | ODTEE'L 31 0000Le § Sag4 weldold YNPY/YINGA LZEP-92-CTZ-TZ-0C

MalAa1/u01ea1d 188004 ayl Bulinp passiw sem 3 Jof pa331a8png 3,usem weldolg AE AVA Avd %0%'TOZE | 88'895°T & [ 88°4T9'T ¢ | oot 5 5334 BIUEQ JAWIUNG £TEP-97-807-T7-07

pajdadxaun sem Inouing "JeaA snoladud ueyl acuepuane Jajeald paaiada. |BYIAL JdUBQ AT AV A %ST'ZE | 00'EPST 9 | OO'EVED S | 00008’y B sweldoid-sajes @Y NL TZZH97-L02-TZ-0C

5Je3A snoIAzId LR JBYSIY USaq JABY 51UBWU|(0JUA adLeq A9 AV Avd %PCTEL [ 97LzTy S [ 9ze6Z'sE s |o00LTIE S U0IINL 33U QITP-9T-L0T-TT-0C

0] JUBLW||CJUI MO[ SBY ||B ‘PA1a8PNG LIBYY SPI 553 6 FRY BulidS | %OT AYANG|  AVINA %lZTT- |(LT'v96's) § | eLs8y'se S|ooosviE  $ uoIng 1) un 0ZTh-92-902-12-02

3nuaaay Uu:mﬂ\Um

138pNg ey} Jamo] 331FS |EIPOISNI PUB ANUAAS) XY [euonippy| — dov Avd|  Avd %BY Lyl | TTETOZR S | 68 vI09PT § | ZETO06S S aUIT WON0g UONESIUIWIPY 33y

s3yddns Ag|d J0 Aeq) "SUaAS LAFAQ "SaUana BI0W “anuasad diysiosuods AQIesO|  MZ AVINN] AVINN | %B9'65 | ZEBYTC S | LEBRLS  $ | OD009E S s531|adns WeJdold s1a3 32dg TTES-BE-6TZ-02-0C

135450 [jiam 35eyadnd dinbz Jay mo| ‘pa1adpng sapun Aed jo A2 “aseyDINd SA UDIIDS PAUBY WAYINNA|  AVINN we6'sar | Te'STOe  $ | 166119 s | noroot't S SIS |EUDISSII0I4 SIAT 2dS 0T2S-9E-6T2-02-02
3s5uadxa JYINI [eUORIppe U synsad |osAed (euonippy|  NZ AVANN| AvVANN | %1€z [ Tr200T  § [ ovesyT  § [ soeer $ JHNI 5143 205 Z8TS-bE-6TZ-02-02

pauve(d ueyl sailied pue sJUBAa oW Buuung| N AVANN|  AvVdNN %TEPC | €609L'T S | L¥BOSZT 5| vSBELS B id S3HEM 53UBAT [B1D2dS 6T TS-FE-6T2-02-07

Juiyoge| Jou asapm "edas payadpnqun 'OOBES 18 JIW 03 5.100p dLeUR paseday|  NE AVANN| AvANN %Ir'9eT | 89°606'T  § | 89'60E'E S | ooroov't < ajueusiuiewy Bulp|ing JJIN DLES-BE-502-02-02

Y2UEIN Ul pajiels 3d1AJ3s 0S|y JHPNGIAPUN |3 3UIED SPIF 'SaDIAISS |BIPOYSNT paladpnglang N9T Avd Avd %S98 [ISLER’Y) § | STT9LT 5 | oo'o09's $ SBMAIAG [RIPOISN] DD STTS-9E-502-02-0Z
303403 03 AN Ut Spew Anu] tewanor ‘papodsiy| 138png uo]  Avd %00'001- f{ss°182T) S| - s|sst8zT § B9 [e4NyeN J¥10 6125-9€-r0Z-02-02

733A PR 10U 535BY3IN JAYI() "PEAISUI IUDJ 03 PIPIISP PUE UBAIDS AIAOW 35EYDING O} PAUUE]d W Avd]  Avd %SEP6 HLS9ELL] S [ EVEIN $]ooooze 5 Juawd]nb3 uonealday £9ES-BE-002-07-0C
19dpng up Avd %E9°ZT- [{187491°2) § | eT'Ee6'rT S| o091 § S8a4 pJde) ypaid-jueq ZrEs-ge-002-02-0¢

AON Ui Pa3EID|jY "spieme/Aed AIRSIBAINUE JOJ UBr U] Pled GEQTS "ANY3.1400UI POIEID||E Sem AU | 158png UD|  AVAND %89°GTT | Z9996'T & | 29'999°¢ S | o0'00L’T ) Suche|ay Y15 eres-3€-007-02-07
43Ny 1an0 Hu108 Juaaaad o1 Juipuads qIna UBD 'paleEpNg UBLR JUDT wid] 01 JUDM JEIS BIE 1| 193pNE UD|  AVAND %S0T | 0T60T'T S | DT'6OSS 5 | 00'0ot's = FuiuesL-p3 V0D DEES-BE-00Z-DZ-0T
Aeld §0 AR as1anpe 01 Lasy) [E13ads pip 'paiadpng AjjeuiSo uey) 1331g usaq aney saInya0ig| NE AVAND|  AVAND %r0'cE | pP'est’s § [ vrve96'€ET S| 000D0SOT S duilulid £ZE5-8E-00Z-02-07
Ajnr ui pauaddey "pudy pue yaJBW Ul sjuawade|dal Jaindwod patedinuy|  128png UD Avd REVEL |(PLTIST) S | 92606 $ ] oozzv'e B s3)ddns Jaindwo) $TES-8E-00Z-0Z-07

188pnq 1eloid woly swos p Asyy Inoy] 'Pa1aFpNguN alam SwWall ysep Sod Jequng| Wz AYINN] ATINM %06'SL | 8L'€8L'T 5 | EL'iBO0F S | S6EZET S sanddns a0 TTES-BE-00Z-0T-0L
Swawwo)| pug.teas [aejunjaed | sep JEAS [eny ala | 3aSpna QLi wmoady

uoday [BIUBLIY JILENY PUOIAS GTOT
12U15K] HIed LBRpUNY




ysnaAny U) pa3Jadxa se pue Ajn{ Ul 310w PIsn “J3YIE3M 03 anp suny U] Jo aiam suciedolly| 133png uo Avd %ot pS- [(09'E6P'E) S | £6'956T s | es'0s%'9 S safdep yJed Aeds STIS-vE-QEF-9Z-0Z

131E( LB S5B|3 ©7 03 3P BULITS AJES LI 35N 10U PIJ UG UM J3WILINS S8 papuaiul se 328png pasn|  338pnA uo A %ol vi- [lo0'eeoy) ¢ | 009t % | oooov's 5 Buiuies-p3 Buinupuod OEES-8E-£21-92-02
HE1S 553 pasn "2UNT Uf SABP JYIEaM |00 SilOS PEH 'paledidiue uey) gels ssa) pajH NS AV A4 %BE'GE- [(8ST9T'ZY) S | 06°EP0S9  § | BPSOETLOL § SadeM plent Aeg SZTS-YE-TIP-92-02

£0 u1323png 01 dn yoiea |Iiw “anss Juiwi/|ig|  123png uQ Avd %ZTTTE |(Ze98r'T) S | TeweZ'E S | ecoacy S Alojuanu) aBeJanag Aed 0ZES-8€-TZr-92-02

ASNQ SeMm AIN[ ‘sInay $53] 03 pea] sunf Alea ul sAep J3joo) NE AV A %9E'Z- |(00'6TL'S) ¢ [o0018LZ S [ DOOOSET S safeM U0Issadu0) Aeg STTS-FE-TZTr-9T-0

s392(01d JUIBW ||BJ SWIOS OF [[IAL -dN 3Ess Sulds pue Jawwns sulnp sieda. ssa AT Avd AV %E9 TS [(T6'0ETY) & [ LEE96E 5 | 8T¥EIE S FouUBUBIUIEIA 3p|g Aeg OLES-BE-0Z-92-02

1€3A [2D1GAY UBY) 30UBUSILIEW/SIEda] S59] Cp 0} SUJABK -Sa5Ua0Xa Ju)||0Le) YEAVE| Av3 %9E'69- [{(6TLTr'y) S | TE'SS6T  $ 1 09°Z8EQ S saldong-w dink3 Aeg (9ES-BE-0Z1-97-0C

paiediziue Uey) Jels ssa| paliy AT AVd Avd %b0'LT- |{Zb'E9E'T) & | BS9E9D % | 00’0008 < suioun Aeg SPES-BE-0ZY-5T-0T

198png up Avd %06'TT- {[ZESTT'Y) & | ev'sso'st s |sLoLes1 $ §334 pJe) UPaJ)/{ueg ABY THES-BE-0TY-92-0T

198pnq J0j 3Ie1] UG ¥IBQ H30I53J 0] ANT Ul Ajlae3Y juads "paladpng se [Ldy/ydlely ul puads juplg| 333png uQ Avd %rEDS- |(L'86E'T) S | TE6LET $ | 8L 2LL'T 3 sa(ddng |eipo1sny Aeg 91£5-8€-0T4-52-0T
JE2A 163U JoJ UMOP puads ||Im Way aul| [|ews ‘sasuadxa Buljjosuo]l| 31a8png up AYd %we6'95- |76 €291} $ | 209221 S | 00'0%8°Z H sanddng Suilesado Aeg 0T£5-9€-0Z4-92-07

Jeah Jxau J0) 1391J00 PUB JCHUOW ((IA% 'PRIREINIVE UEL) 1amo] aBesn/saley 0T Avd Avd %L0'Zh |(6F'9LE9) S | LT'08L'E S5 |9L9sT'sT  § 5U3|3 Aeq BTZ5-9E-0Z1-92-0C

lledaA0 Jama| aFesn /saley "NES AQ PRIEdIIUR UBY] §53| SEM ARIA UL GN LIEIS |00 0T Avd A4 %6l 05- |(PE'Z9R'S) S | BL8RLS R ESRiE J3MI5-13eM ARG L TTS-9E-0T97-07

J4B15 553| PIS(] "3UNT Ul SARP JaYIRaMm |003 3Was pey "paiedPAuR URY] Jels $53) paJIH NTAvd]  Avd %.¢ LT- [(60°2867%) S [ £S9BTET  § [9989THT  $ [eLOSeSS S8R ARd SZTS-4E-0Z-92-02

HELS 558 Pas() "BUNT Ul SABR JBLRERM |002 BWOS PEH "PalediDIUE UBY) Jjels $53] paliH At Avd Avd %99'5T- [(T9°82F'e) ¢ | z999v'8r ¢ | e's6g'1Z  § safep Wiy Med ARg GTTS-VE-0CP-9Z-02
sainypuadhg

J5UI0UR PUY 01 |G 3,UBJ3M PUE BUNT U] AJSUNGY JO ING PaACLL J&1anaisu| 0@ ,upip sweldosd yoead|  dE AVANN| AvdINN %0F'Z8- [(00'9€Z'T) ¢ | 0052 $ | 00'005'T B 5394 WRIF0.d 810 LZEP-9T-0Fb-92-02
paiedipnue uey) paaiy adam pels 5531 AT AVINN]  AvEIND %L DE- |(00°T6LT) $ | D0'SEQY 5 | ooozg’s H SIUAWIBSINGUIAY JeIs Aeg QZaY-0E-ETr-9Z-07

Y3y Buiay osje 53es N5A AP JO BADaYaY pad|ay SBY JBUIESAM A8 AVd AYd UZT'Er | €6 LTT'PT S | 902889y & | €1'6EL2€ S SUQISSAOU0] 52185 ARE TTZP-vZ-TZ0-92-0C

AV S5 A (1M Yidow Fuoas sey IsNFny y| "IsnEny ul uaAa 0) On JUSNED sey 1aBpng “anss| Juiw)L| 1e8png uo| AvINN %.2'9T- [(0Z'8TE'E) $ | STTLH9T S | S¥'6BL6T S 1ejuay ALoRd ARG TOZP-¥Z-0Z-92-07
A3t pad|ay sey JaYI1eam 10y Y3Im PIUKIWOD 1By "JB3A SIY3 S33) Ajlep 3y UON paseaudu| ASTS AV AVd %IP'0ET | 582895 S | S8E¥EYE S| 0009TT¥F S 5334 Alled sad UON Aeg 90TH-TZ-QZr-9Z-0F
SPUYIIM 304 BJam Yip pue Aeq 5,3yley ‘Aep |epowdy “padjay Ajleal sey Jauleam Ap ‘1oH ASAvd| Awd %EG'GE | DO'BIEZT & | OOEYE'EY S [00SI6'0E $034 Ajieq] uapIsay Aeg SOTH-TZ-0ZF-92-07
Inuaray sanenby

#auenb puz ay) ulJudwanosduw Apeals Avd| A %00~ | TrEesT 5 |lgeevzon) § [(s£99itT) ¢ BU WONGE MBLA JED

sadem uo s3uARS ‘URJ sweigoud 5531 AT Avd Avd %SS'TE- [(BT'€0Z'T) ¢ | 201972 5 | ogreTg’e H safe, WeJB0.d 6TTS-E-9ZE-52-0Z

pajediiue uey sBUILIB] S53] 2UC( "0X3 Jamo|/a3) Jamol|  1adpng uD Avd %iv'vT- |(P9E0Z'E) $ | vrvEd’sT  § | 80'BETTT  § S9FeM LIRIL 513d 6TTS-VE-GZE-52-07

13guIELL mau esle 01 3uawdinba mau Buiseyaund ‘|ey 1oy 1aBpng uo aq |Ian sesuadxa Fuiseyuo | 338png ug A %76'98- [(9T'€L1'2) 6 | z6'9zE s | soroos'z 4 sal|ddng wetdold ZTES-BE-STE-52-07
paaosdw] st Aj|19e) Jey) mou pamals ulpusds -dn 11 Fuiues ] "3 PUE MaIA Nied Bullepdh oy ana|  ANZ AvaNn|  Avann %IO'STT | DD'ZBE'T  § | OT'ESH'Y $ | oz10% B dJUBUIIE JUIP|iNg (LES-BE-QDE-SZ-0F
431339 35143npE pUR AJI|198} 33 3A0IdW] O3 SPJECG LRA||ING PUR S3WE) J31500 mau paseyding| Nz AvINN] AvaNNn  [%Ezio0T | veitbT  § [ vElseT ¢ [ooorE S S3NIXNIZ/IN3IUINS [9ES-BE-DOE-52-07
s330nb uo Bujijem ‘dinba mau Y1 M aseydand 1oy 3sn Aely pauue)d sejuswdinba pases) Jou aaeq ATT AV A %Eoegs |(bozize) S| evrizeT s | 9070052 < 3s5ea7/3udy dinb3 59ES-BE-ODE-5T-0T
1BIpng un| A4 %68'6T- |(69'7£R'7) § | LG4¥6TT  § [ 92Z28%T  § 334 pJe) Ipad-yueq ZHES-BE-00E-52-02

243y PAACW q |[1# PUR PIPOI SS|W BJam s3)|ddns adyjo ayl jo awog| 11@3prgup|  Awd %976 |(00580°2)  $ | 00591 $ | oooszz $ sanddng Jaindwo?) ¢TES-BE-00E-S2-07

(4 0} Je1s Fay JO UONISUES ] AJ 232Pdn 0} BPEW S35YIING "19 Buoim 0] papoo swiadl awos| 3T AVANN|  AVINN %BLHTT | TRLETT S | STEET'E S | ¥E'S66 S 53ljddns 21440 TTES-BE-DOE-52-0Z

04 03 JJ815 33y JO UDNISURL} 1§ "Ad 31Bpdn 0) BpBLU SaseydINg patdadxa ueyy Jalea paseLInd| AT AVANN| AVENN %LOES | 6L¥69'T 5 | ESTSEBY S | pLLSTE H sa|jddns Junesado OTES-BE-Q0E-SZ-02
DDWN/MBIA Red 1epdn 01 A0S 35N 1AL dzAvd[ A %S1'T6- |(LZ'0L£'9) $ | 5819 S |ossass s 1Ies3u0) WN-4dy Bpig OveS-9E-00E-ST-0T

sAuIaes Lim di2y |im Aueiem U0 USLKIINDS Mau 10} GIRJED 3] J0 150U 110 SuIpel] AT Avd Avd %Is'ot- |leesce'n) S |sveeds s |oroose S 1Deau0s IN-1dy dinbl 0£25-9€-00€-52-02

paiedidiue uey) ssa| 38esn pue S31eY "PAIBFPNG IO AS Avd Avd %10'8T- [{0z'Zese) S| oL tebZl S | 9G'ELT’ST § H43I9|3 BTES-9E-00E-52-02

24N Ul palie)s 32iUas oSy *1aFpnq.apun jjam JLWeS spig 'sa21AJ9S [B]polsnd pajadpnglaag W6T Avd Avd wiEge- |(ST'6L6L) $ | SL950°T S | oooto’s H SINAIIG (RIPOISND STZS-9£-00E-52-02

118} vl Buaow JuawdinDa ssauly pue ‘uoileyNSUOT [RPOLWAI oAU Joy puads Ip]  328png UQ Avd %pe'08- |(€0'96Sy) | £6'880T 6 [o0'sge’s S $22IA15S [BUQISSII0]d 0T Z5-95-008-52-02

a3e4an00 yyeay Bunsanbal JaBuo) ou ‘jauuesiad uj sBuey) 0T AYd Avd %0T'0E- |(6L'0TL'2) | vrLTE9 S | £2°8E0'S s BIURINSU| 341N 7 YB3 #STS-FE-Q0E-52-0C

saunypuadig

61 Y233 03 5143 BURIAXT '||By BUI U1 PRJAYO 5SS MU (R3S NE AVINN]  AvdINN %08'9¢€- |(€£'90T"G) § | v@'6oL' S| La'oL9ET S 5984 WeJB0ld LTEY-92-92E-52-07

S/AGUIRL MBU 133X 'SUOREYNSUOS 431y Buippe 'suonowo.d ‘asealdur 33ud yInoyy asd ysnd| A0T AvINN]  AvENN 6L RL- [(ST0T6'S) & | sTE8s9T & | 05E6pZE S Buluied] [PUCSI] STEP-9T-SZE-ST-0T
J3UBD WAL 1M PUNDJE LN 01 (24 193dx3 "dn Bulwo S| Ing gaJ/ue; u) Jamo| sem diysiaquiainl|  198png UD| AVANA %LOTT- |(TSYER'TE S | BP'S9S'EC 5 | 0000OS9E  $ diysiaquialy sse|) 0ST-9Z-STE-ST-0T
1124 5|e3U3. ISEII3UI 03 A} 03 YIR3.13n0 FuinQ "UOSEas [B3uUad awLd Bunp Aljiqe|ieae WA Jo 3321 NE AVANN]  ASNN %vi9s- j{szriB’n) s | sTelg s | OPERLE [3 (eluay AM[IDed TO7Y-FZ-00€-57-0T
1184 U] uawidinba Bujdeiday '[ley o) S31e) mau “OIysJagqUIaW 3OS PaISA0D3) SEIY J3UIWINS SUGJIS| MOS AVINN] AVEINN %89°0T- H96'669'6T) $ | EF'SHL'YIT S | BE'SHEFRT $ diysiaquialn DSTy-2Z-00E-SZ-07
P31330x3 AJaA0ID) BLUOS "303S-|Nf U1 JbMO| BJE SUDIRE3D||Y “T aunf-T uer Ajensed pasep wAg| NS AVINNE AVINN %SE'9y- [{00062°0T) ¢ | O0OTE'TT  § [oo'00Z'ZE § 5834 A8 D0Tt-TZ-00E-SZ-0Z
198pNq 6TA 941 Ul PRSSAIPPE 2q |)IM SIY) 'SUOIEIO0|(e AlyILow yim qol Jood e pip ap|  398png ug Avd %0891 | LyTrIT S | 6POTPIT  § [ Z0vils S JHW| $axe) 318153 |29Y ¥00r-02-00€-SZ-0T

ANUDADY MIIA Hled

SBUIABS 35uALXA YV PUE 51502 RIS J3MO) JO UDNBULIqUCD AST A Av3 %85'949- | 8E'T589T S| LST9EWT 5 |(1B06KE) S aul wonog 3 g Sy

3J/AIDS MBU YW PESN 3G PINOm JELM MmO 10U Pi "paiedidjiue uey) s31ddns s3] Juisn NE AV Avd %Ir0s- [{ET200T) § | L8066 $ | 00'866T B s3lgdns [e1poIsn) 9TES-BE-TRT-YT-DT

Alnr yaun paoeyda. 3,usem Jaandwiod s,Josjasadng “anss) 3uurl | Jedprgug| A %0896~ [{£0T5¥'T) S | €6t 5100005T 5 sanddng fBIndwo) FTES-BE-78T-12-07

POy 553] '5p{Y 5537 'SA0QE Se awes AP Avd Avd %0t-at~ |{yzv0T'e) S | 94's8S'E $ | 00°069"9 H SHIBUS § paOd GOTS-RE-TRT-T-OT

SN Gl SUlIes Auew se 30U ‘SABD J[EY UO SpI 310W 3ARY OS[y "PSSEYIING POy 553| ‘SPIY 5597 AE Avd Avd %69°8Z- |(bLTL9'E) & | 9Zi2T'6 S [ 00°008B'ZT  § AJADS paod 9ZTS-9E-ZRT-VTOT
OLIBUBJS 5B 35J0M 133png A Avd Avd %00°00T- [(96'6rT'Z) $ - s | 9676v2'C H ¥ov-YleaH BSTS-vE-Z8Z-42-02

41230 ||Im 353UaCX3 |EJIPaIL 1ELM JO s53Nd B 5| unode syl 3a3png ug Avd %19°vs- |(SE'TOT'T) $ | L5866 s | zoooz'z S VYH-UNRIH L5TS-VE-IBT-PC-0L

suawiue)| puzJedy | Aejunfaes | Jeas Y [CL LT 199png Ali N0y |

oday |ewueury Joueny puadas §TOT
WISIT HIBd WS|SpUNKW




AVINN| AvdNN | %109t [{vazoe’el § |(92954'BT) S [(ZoeBi'vT) § BUF) WOLIO] |00d J00pU

003 235 U0 JOYS "BLIULNI 313M SIS5R(D SS3] udym Jead Jo jjey 1521 Suunp pasn aiam sofem ssa Pr A4 A4 %aT'Le- [{05°096'%) 5 | OT'ZBE'S S | 09ipE’ET o W] Wed sofep 6TTS-bE-Z0F-0E-DT
3a8png uo xeq 1ad 03 sasuatxa BuuoluoW "Niedal PAlAEPNGUN UE SEM 1IUN YIBd |004 U JWam 1030l | NTAVANN] AVANN | %Tror [ee'26eT $ [ee'Zefr S | 00000 S ddueuIeRW Suip|ing 02 £5-BE-0t-0E-0F
paiediaiue ueys ssaf aesn pue sajey ‘paldlpng JAAQ ¥enavd  Avd %Y ET- [{(097269T) $ | OFZ68'0T § | 00'SESTET  § 111333 8TZS-9€-00t-0€-0T

sdunypuadig

J23Uysh U) BRJRI0||R JIAO “JALULWNS SIUY dn ydne?) "Fuiiodsd anuanas paalapap uo ansst BulwiL] e AVANN|  AvdAND %egi9- [{2£°882°F) 5 ]| 000607 s | Le'Lea $ SU0SSaT 21BAld ZDF-9Z-T0t-0E-0T
3OS 13A002. 03 3290X3 ‘SUOIIED0||E PasSEAINS SANUBAS. "JAWWNS U] paLINdD0 31monns o3 afueyd| T Avdnn|  AvdNn %Z6L7- [(16796'8) 5| vSOPT'EZ 6 | S'EOTZE § 5UDS53T WIMS TOPP-9Z-Z00-0E-07
128pNnq e 0} y3eq 133 pUk 53550] JBAOTS) 03 Wwale Ul aannugs diyssaquaw JuiBueyd] s AvdND| AvaNn | %sTT- [(ezsiee] S szeevTr § ) eeleEs § diysiaquiay 0STH-Z7-001-0E-07

INLIIADY |00 J00PU]

538) JUIW||0JU3 |BUCIIPPE Ajuleiy NST Avd|  Avdnn %05 T- [(62'04T'T) $ | 5606694 | vTTOUBL  § SUr] WONOE PeUu0y 154

Aluediem Japun 3Je 1sow ‘siieds. Jouiw pey sel uiping Jequng AT AvS Ao %s0'46- [lor'zeRT) s | 094s 5 | 00°0S6'T 5 FIueulluely Bulp(ing 0£ES-8E-0LZ-LZ-07

sdu3 uo BuioB sply auow uf paynsad JJo SABP Uo spIY aJow ‘yo shkep enxa 33l ¥z AvaNn| Awvdnn %r8'6E | SEOTE'T S [s801T'8 ¢ | o00008S  § 3suadx3 duL pjald /5E6-BE-0LZ-£Z-0T

003 s3uaJed AQ JyEn0Jq JUIaQ SO WOy SYIBUS B0 'ss3) Bunea spiy dn sj Juaw(jaiua yInoLpyy ATAvd]  Avd %EeLor- |[ZT092°T) S | L0995t S| 6T9EEY S S$HIBUS B POOJ FOES-BE-0LT-L7-0F
saumyipuadx3

dn Juswjoiug “jje} oy dn paudls siead snowaid uew spi} 340w ‘WesBo.d o Aep B1xa 331yl NOT Avd|  Avd %8901 | DO'STE'T  $ | 00'S66'EZ 4 | 000B9TZ  $ 5394 WEJB0Nd [TEP9T-0LT-LT-02
198pNG GTA4 3U3 Ul passaIpPe 3q |1z S1y] 'SUOREdD)E Ajauow yim qol saod 2 pip ama| 3a8png uo|  Avd %0897 | £219%'T  § [ 7045101 | vi'se98  § JYI-saxe ] 31153 |eaY FO0Y-02-0/Z-L2-02

INUIABY JIIUUG) IBY

AV Avd %.8'E0T- | 68'669'26T § | TOZ8T'L  § |(pELTS'SBI) § aul] woeneg sanenby

Alsnoiraid Jaguall fels Buiuinial ey "els MaN ‘PAIRdIIUR UBL]L JEBA DY) U] 191e| 4BIS Pl A€ Avd]  Avd %ETLp- |(ST'0S0'T) $ | s®e6ze S| 000SEy  § sadeps awl) JJed WpY 6TTS-FE-rSP-92-07
P31820|[B UBLL AJN[ Ul 20U P3ST) "pasn UEY] auNT Ul 2J0W P31RIG!Y 'UC JUSM JBWLINS SE dn Jyane] ST Avd|  Avd %5529 [(£9°068'S) $ |TSTSE S |6UBIVE S Safep pJeng yaeag SZTS-rE-Evr-92-07
uo uam Jawing se dn jydned sasuadxz;  138png up Avd 20079 [{02'6E9'T) 5 | 0E'BFO'T < | oo'gsa'T < dx3 Jad0 oS 2898 6PES-BE-0FF-92-0Z

J3)12U J3WINS PApNI2U) 38PNy 5,ABQ Ul PAQIDSGE 259M S35UB0XS SUIOS N2 Avd Avd %00°00T- |{00°000'E} & - BN SUOIIOWOIG-5PY YIRIY ZZES-BE-OFy-92-07

PaAOL JOJINIISUI JBYE LN 3,UPIN SWeJdosd yorag N AVE] AW %000 [{0000vt) $ | oooDTT 5 | 0DDDSE S S331A135 4014 Y2e39 DTTS-9E-0by-97-07

ATS ey §53] 4O SAUAES "UC Juam JaLains se dn 3YBNReD Jawwns Ul AjJea ge3s 553| pasn|  328png uQ AV %9 it~ [(TE'8SL'T) S {699vet  § |oosoLs § saHeM YIBIE STIS-PE-0Ft-92-0T

AT UBY) $53| S3uIARS “5303f01d Julew ||€) LGS Op [IM "Jawins Julnp siedas ssan| 198pna ug| Avg %Sl |(PSBITT) 6 | 9v'T8E $ [oooost  $ WIEN 6Inb3 Yd JES DIES-BE-OEF-9Z-02

D| pugseap |Ajunjaed | sep ¥ JEA S 1en1Y (LA 328prg aIA Wnony

Hoday BIIuUBUl4 JBUBNT PUOJAS 8TOZ
WUISIA Yed UIBjEIpUnA




Mundelein Park &

Recreation District
2016-2020 Strategic Plan

Approved
7/25/2016
Updated
8/14/2017
2/12/2018
8/27/2018




Introduction

The Mundelein Park & Recreation District worked with Executive Decisions in the development
of a Strategic Plan in the Spring of 2016. The purpose of the plan is to provide direction for the
District in concert with the Master Plan previously adopted. The planning period for this plan
covers 2016-2020.

The methods for developing this plan were to use input from the community, Board and staff. A
Community Wide Survey was conducted in the late fall/early winter of 2015. The survey
instrument was developed in partnership with the University of St. Francis. A random sampling
of residents was used to represent approximately 28% of the households. The survey was
available online or hardcopy upon request. Of the 2,945 homes notified, 354 (12%) responded.
An additional 276 surveys were completed via the District’s wehsite but were not considered in
the statistical representation of data.

The survey questions were categorized into several areas including : Interests, Participation,
Satisfaction/Value, Communication and Demographic. The full report is available on the
District’s website.

In addition to the Community Wide Survey, the District held a Strategic Plan meeting open to
the general public. This half day workshop held on a Saturday at the District’s Regent Center
was attended by five residents, five Board members and 18 staff. During this meeting attendees
had an opportunity to develop a SWOT analysis of the District’s strengths, weaknesses,
opportunities and threats as related to programming and facilities. From the Parks and
Facilities SWOT Analysis, a list of capital improvements was developed for four categories: New
Facility and Open Space Acquisition; Park Development; Building & Facility Improvements; and
Service Improvements. Each of these capital items was then scored and the Capital
Improvement Priorities list was developed.



Programming SWOT Analysis

Strengths

Staff

Special Events

Communication

Steeple Chase Golf Club

Variety

Clean Facilities

Community Involvement

Cost Effective

Barefoot Bay

Reputation

Social Media

Volunteers

Customer Service

Scholarship Program
Maintenance Landscaping
Knowledgeable Instructors
Diversity of Facilities & Opportunities
Convenience

Class Size

Inter-departmental Cooperation
Well Organized

Friendliness

Payment Options

Customer Options/Schedule Flexibility
Education

Self-Worth Development
Building Developmental Attitudes

Weaknesses

Aging Facilities

Complacency

Senior Programs

Lack of Ethnic Diversity

Including Entire Community
Government Restrictions

Past Successes

Money

Funding

Lack of Participation/Cancelled Classes
Inability to Improve Strengths

Not bilingual

Low Participation by Hispanics

Past Failures

Competition

Inability to Act Quickly on Trends
Facilities Lack Multi-purpose Use
Potential Development of Resources
Priority Arrangements



Opportunities

Technology

Services for all Ages
Business Partnerships
Fundraising

Diversity

Dream

Creative Financing
Think Outside the Box
Employment

Expand Adult Programming
Accessible Playgrounds
Growth and Expansion
Share Talents

Programming SWOT Analysis

Threats

Changes in Demographics
Competition

Funding

Lack of Fresh Ideas

Legislation

Technology Increasing Expectations
Program Costs

Politics

Time

Criticism

Maintenance Capabilities

Fear of Change

Social Media

Close Minded/Not Realizing These Threats
Lack of Communication with Customer
Economy

Community Apathy

Complacency

Competitive Wages

Attitude

Failing

Monitoring

Negativity

Limitations on Potential Expansion




Societal and recreation trends were discussed at the planning meeting. The group came up with the

following:

Society Trends

Volunteerism

Spend more time with social media
Fitness/wellness

Selfishness (me centered)

Ego

Technology

Bullying

Aging populations

Millennials

Bribery

Income gaps

Celebrityism (celebrities who reaily aren’t)
Impatiencefinstant gratification
Sexual identity

Changing face of family

Life expectancy

Recreation Trends

Fitness

Health/Weliness

Nature play
Competition for patrons
Senior playgrounds
Shorter class/program duration
Technology aided fitness
All hours of the day
Accessibility
Inclusiveness
Non-traditional

Youth sports

Lacrosse

Learn to swim

Senior enrichment
Injury protection

Too much structure
Sportsmanship



Parks and Facilities SWOT Analysis

Strengths

Maintenance Department
Diamond Lake

Number of Parks

Barefoot Bay

Spray Park

Diamond Lake Sports Complex
Community Park

Kracklauer Park

Steeple Chase Golf Club
Cooperation with Village
Community Center

Indoor Walking Track
Management

Natural Areas

Park View Health & Fitness
Intergovernmental Agreements
Big & Little Child Development Center
Playgrounds

New Basketball Courts
Affiliates

Leadership

Weakness

Age of Facilities

Interior of Facilities

No Driving Range

Under Staffad

Lack of Space at Golf

Diamond Lake Water

Lack of Funding

Building Space

Not Going Green

Shoreline Erosion

Update Landscape at Facilities

No Dog Parks

More Walking Trails (connections)
Policies (internal protest)

Wi Fi

Programs

Expanded Authority (empower staff)
Slow to Change

Accessibility



Parks and Facilities SWOT Analysis

Threats

Politics

Money

Space

Outdated Maintenance Facility
Competition

Aging Facilities

Lake of Community Involvement
Confusion of Separation from Village
Consolidation

Opportunities

17 Acres on Shady Lane

Adopt a Park

Resident Education
Sponsorships

Funding

Chalet

Ice Rink with Coils

Inline Skating Rink

Driving Range over Lake at SCGC
Outdoor Fitness Equipment (trail)
Indoor Activity Pool

Diamond Lake

New Development

Paved Path Through Community Park
Dog Park

Bike Path Plan (connection)
Wetland Trails

Environmental Restoration
Theatre

Facilities for the Elderly

Rental Space

More Fitness Space

Public Events {races)

Banguet Facility

Longer Hours

Lights at Basketball Courts
Children’s Zoo




CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PRIORITIES

Assessment March 2016

NEW FACILITY AND OPEN SPACE ACQUISITION

Rank Board Staff Cumulative

-4 2.2 2. 2.1 Sesurerental-space for programs
(no longer necessary with Chalet rebuild)
2 2.2 2.4 24 Expand-clubhouse-at-Steeple- Ghase-{banguets)

(feasibility study showed cost too high for ROI)
3 26 26 26 Build a driving range at Steeple Chase
(meeting with engineer/architect February 2018)

(architects presented plan/costs to the Board August
2018)

4 3.0 2.8 29 Build a dog park



Rank Board Staff Cumulative

1 1.4
2 3.0
3 3.6
4 2.0

2:3

1.9

2.6

33

2.0

2.2

2.8

3.0

PARK DEVELOPMENT

(Improvements to existing parks)

Develop Shady Lane property

(landscape architect developed plans, applying for
OSLAD grant fall 2018)

Paved path through Community Park

(added a section of sidewalk from Midlothian Road to
front circle and adding path from entrance road to
new tennis/basketball courts)

Improve natural areas

(actively managing invasive vegetation as well as
increasing prescribed burn areas each year)

(streambank stabilization project at Wilderness Park
South began July 2018 — summer crew person hired
to focus on natural areas)

Install coil system for ice rink
(architect secured to develop plans/budget)

(plans presented to Board June 2018)



BUILDING & FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS

(Improvements to existing buildings and revenue producing facilities)

Rank Board Staff Cumulative

1 2.6
g 1.8
3 3.2
4 4.2
5 4.4
6 4.8

21

2.6

3.4

4.0

43
4.6

22

24

3.3

4.0

43
46

Remodel interior Regent Center
(main room remodel summer 2017)

(quotes secured for bathroom & entry remodel fall
2018)

Expand Chalet

(construction began May 2017)
(new facility opened April 2018)
Remodel interior Community Center

(met with interior designer January 2018 to develop
ideas and budgets)

(interior designer submitted remodeling ideas,
meeting with lighting firm to set budget for upgrades)

Improvements to parks department buildings

(improved ventilation in Building 1 to prevent mold,
adding heater to make building more useable)

(adding heat to north addition of Building 1 fall 2018)
Remodel interior Diamond Lake Beach
Remodel interior Kracklauer Dance Studio

(Completed with new parent viewing/waiting room,
June 2017)



SERVICE IMPROVEMENTS

(Improvements to internal or external services)

Rank Board Staff Cumulative

1 4.0 3.3 3.4 Develop a building maintenance plan
(current procedures documented, plan yet to be drafted)

(in progress, gathering info on equipment used, frequency/
procedures of maintenance of equipment and
vendor/service contacts for equipment)

2 29 3.8 3.8 Develop a long range IT plan
3 6.3 3.2 3.7 Expand District’'s Wi-Fi
(work began 2016, not yet complete)

(installed 11 new AP'’s throughout District summer 2018, 3
more expected to be installed by September 30)

3 2.3 3.9 3.7 Conduct a space study to evaluate best use of
existing space

5 33 4.7 4.5 Conduct an energy audit for all buildings

(met with several medical providers to discuss use of
space at Community Center)

6 4.6 4.8 4.7 Implement new financial software
(software chosen, launch September 2018)

(software installed on District network, launching

September 2018)
7 0.4 5.9 58 Develop a fleet management plan
8 7.7 6.6 6.8 Move toward paperless environment with large

capacity scanners

(purchased scanner for new BS&A process, will evaluate
effectiveness and productivity)

10



Strategic Priority 1: _Program Participation and Facility Membership to be More Reflective of Qur

Community (age/race)

Goals

Timeline

Resources Needed

Staff Assigned

Hire more bi-lingual
front line staff (10% of
all candidates
interviewed must be bi-
lingual)

Begin Fall 2016, reach
10% by Fall 2018
Spring 2017 -11%
applied, 8.3%
interviewed

Spring 2018 — 44% of
new hires bi-lingual

Staff awareness of goal,
tracking mechanism

Human Resource
Manager, Department
Heads, Supervisors

Hire more diverse front
line staff (10% of all
candidates interviewed
must be diverse)

Begin Fall 2016, reach
10% by Fall 2018

Spring 2017 hires — over
50 = 8, Asian =3,
African-American = 2,
Hispanic =5

Spring 2018 hires — over
50=5, Asian=2,

Staff awareness of goal,
tracking mechanism

Human Resource
Manager, Department
Heads, Supervisors

Hispanic =1
Develop bi-lingual focus | Spring 2017 Mano a Mano Director, Department
group NICASA Heads
Utilize Hispanic Continual Reflejos, CLC, Churches, | Human Resource
recruitment resources Santa Maria, Christina PTOs, Clinics Manager

for every opening

la Vina, Indeed

Encourage current staff
to learn Spanish

Continual
Marketing Specialist
took two class at CLC

CLC Classes, staff time

Director, Department
Heads, Supervisors

Develop a “FAQ”
(frequently asked
questions) cheat sheet
in Spanish

Spring/Summer 2017

Translator, staff time

Superintendent of
Recreation, Marketing
Specialist

Develop a Spanish
hotline (telephone and
website)

Spring/Summer 2017

Translator

Superintendent of
Recreation, Marketing
Specialist

Recruit at least one
Hispanic for the Rec
Advisory Committee

Winter 2016/2017
Hispanic individual
invited to join, no
commitment yet
Non-white member
added, 2™ Hispanic
resident asked to join

Mano a Mano
NICASA

Board, Director,
Superintendent of
Recreation

Host an annual open
house

Spring annually
Tie into Dunbar Rec
Center opening 4/7/18

$2,000 annually

Director, Department
Heads, Supervisors

11




Goals

Timeline

Resources Needed

Staff Assigned

Host an annual open
house

Spring annually

Tie into Dunbar Rec
Center opening 4/7/18
Planning a fall 2018
Open House with new
Park View equipment &
gym floor

$2,000 annually

Director, Department
Heads, Supervisors

12




Strategic Priority 2: _Improve Staff Communication Through Technology

Goals

Timeline

Resources Needed

Staff Assigned

Expand master calendar
to include activities of
each department
(update monthly)

Spring 2018
Intranet committee
formed, will include
calendar

Staff time, scheduling
software

Superintendents of
Recreation and B&G,
Marketing Specialist

Review position duties

25% of positions

Staff time, mobile

Department Heads

to set priorities of annual, completed by providers
mobile device 2020
implementation Fall 2017, Grounds

Supervisor issued tablet

7 positions in parks

department being

equipped with smart

phone spring 2018

Summer 2018 Building

Supervisor issued tablet
Research software for Summer 2017 Staff time Superintendent of B&G,
maintenance functions IT Contractor
Relaunch intranet for Fall 2017 Staff time, training, Superintendent of

employee
communication

Spring/Summer 2018
launch

Web designer creating
site, staff training early
November

part-time staff ID’s

Business Services,
Human Resource
Manager

Utilize texting more

Continual

New software
purchased to
communicate with
Camp parents

Smart phones, annual
budgets

Department Heads,
Supervisors

13




Strategic Priority 3: _Develop Building Maintenance Plan

Goals Timeline Resources Needed Staff Assigned
|dentify and document | Spring 2017 Staff time Superintendent of B&G,
current maintenance Building Maintenance Building Maintenance
procedures Supervisor developing Supervisor
Research other Fall 2017 Staff time Superintendent of B&G
agencies’ plans
Develop financial plan Summer 2017 Staff time Director,
to determine funding Long Range Financial Superintendent of
Plan drafted fall 2017, Business Services,
not finalized yet Superintendent of B&G
Determine long term Summer2018 §S?? Director, Department
use of the buildings (delayed with staff Heads
(space study and energy | transitions)
audit)
Research grants Continual Staff time Director, Department
Superintendent of B&G Heads
researching lighting
grants offered through
Dominion lighting
Research building Winter 2018/2019 Staff time Building Maintenance

automation options

Installing Nest
thermostat at Steeple
Chase Clubhouse

Supervisor

Conduct geographic
assessment

Summer 2018

Staff time, software

Director

14




Strategic Priority 4: _Increase Participation (people and revenue) by 10%

Goals

Timeline

Resources Needed

Staff Assigned

Increase email database
by 10%

Annually measured
Golf yes for 2017

Rec benchmark begins
1/1/18 (8,000 on
Constant Contact list)

Staff time

Rec Supervisors,
Registration staff,
Marketing staff

Mail renewal letters to
facility members one
month before
expiration

Continual

Regent in newsletter,
Park View email, Golf
Loyalty Program email

Staff time, postage

Community Center
Manager, Aquatic
Supervisor

Offer more contests at
special events

Minimum 2 per year,
beginning 2017
Coloring contest at
District 75 & 79 open
house, Health Fair
punch card, raffles at
Chase 5K, Breakfast
with Santa guess #
candy in jar, Enchanted
Princess free drawing
foralimo ride
Numerous raffles at
Grand Opening, free
trees at Earth Day, gift
baskets at Wild About
Mom, Go Mundelein
raffle for Fit Bit

Money for prizes/give-
aways, staff time

Rec staff, Foundation

Promote online
registration after
software launch

Fall 2016
Online registration up
to 47% Spring 2017

Advertising dollars, staff
time

Marketing Specialist

Develop a monthly Winter 2016/2017 Staff time Marketing Specialist,
marketing calendar Completed Rec staff
Research expansion of Spring 2017 Staff time Community Center

facility hours of
operation

Manager, Registration
Manager

Add adult targeted
special events

Minimum 2 per year,
beginning 2017
Margaritaville & Craft
Beer Night for 2017

Program budgets and
staff time

Superintendent of
Recreation, Supervisors

Develop a Park District
loyalty program

Spring 2018

Park View-refer a friend
Park View & Bay-
member appreciation
days

Staff time

Superintendent of
Recreation, Supervisors

15




Goals

Timeline

Resources Needed

Staff Assigned

Bay-coupon book & gift
w/early bird purchase
Big & Little-multi child
discount

Regent Center-
member-advanced
registration

Partner with other Park
District to purchase
expensive special event
equipment

Continual

Reaching out to Village
& Library regarding
movie screen purchase

Staff time, funds
dependent on
equipment purchased

Director, Department
Heads

16




“100}J Ysiuyal pue pues 0l UiniaJd 01 4019e43U02 10} Juawhied [euly Suip|oH

J100]4 WwAD

T JaqwiaAoN Aq youne| 03} oadx3
*s98ed 1auesju) SU1ldNIISUOD Judisap gam — J1uSISap gam YUM 2JBYS [|IM ‘SIUSIUOD 193135 01 8T/S/9
19W — {2JN12N431S} BUIJIN0 SUIWIAIAP 01 8T/LZ/b 12W — SUOIIUAIU UILLIBIRP 01 8T/S/E 19W 22104 yse]

19URIU( 1911SIQ Yled dojeaaqd

*ZT 1990120 uonejuasaad pieog 109dx3 'T/6T/9 PUB BTOZ/E 19W 32104 ySe |

0307 121151 J4Bd Y5249y

"Jaquialdas ul aal| o ||IM “8T/€/L suonelsiiom
PuUE 19AJ35 UO PIj|B)SUl 2IBMUOS — STOZ/S 21eMUYOS 10) 1]ING-24 J3AISS — LT0Z/ZT Papleme 10eiluo)

uonelu W dw| a.emuos

“IT Joquiaidas

uo 3unsaw [epueuly d3ues Suo| 1B pasSNIsIP 3q O] "pally JaIUM JUBID /9 1§ §/9 Sulieay J1gnd

PI3y — 3|ge|ieae uaym uanum 3ujaq uonedldde Juesd -- gT/8/9 Ag po1sadxa sajewiisa 1507 pue ueld
paiepdn -- £10Z/0T s49aui8ua Yam 13w - £T0Z/6 SuBisap 1da2uoDd paaiRdal - LT0Z/8 199NYIE YHM B

Aniadodd auet Apeys

*asuodsal e 1oy Buniepn

'SIUBWAJIND3J1 1IN0 PING PAIHPOW ‘LUOOI U3} SJajaJd WUl | d “WOO0J 193UU07) 39y SulIapisuod ‘ansuadxs
00} WeooJ U391 Jo 1IN0 pling ‘0Z/9 uieSe pausia Wl 14 — 31onb undas aie am ‘sjuawalinbal Ino pjing
paieys Aayi Juawiiedap 31013 [B3J SWUL 14 YUM oUBI84U0I auoyd QT/S/9 — 159493u passaidxa sey
1BY] tiy} U0 Yum suondo ssndsip 01 3nUIUOY -- AlBNICa4 Ul 0S]e W} PUCDIas B ‘AIBnigad Ul 921m) Wiy
U0 YUM 19W -- palsaJalul Jou ale A3yl 9Al WO.) 32110U — 8T0Z/T s4auned jejualod ydis paloeiuo)

Jaulied Adeaay] [eaisAyd

"AjlwiE) BY] 03 UOIIIBUUDD B PUNDY 30U dARH

‘ulede Ajlwey 03 IN0 yIeau 03 Jdwane |[Im ‘PaIsaIdIU] 10U uoneziuedi() — Suimalaal [|13s aJe Ayl Suides
61/9 1IN0 payleal Jaquy — 8T0Z/S/9 Sunoye Ul Jaquiy 0} J9313) Juasal -- 1daq Sunsyie ul S1IEA
BA31S 10} WA 3] — BIUIOYI|ED O} PaAQUI 0[[9150)) 3jAeD ‘BT /1/9 dn pamojjoy — 8T/FT/S Iuas 12112 35anbay

awen Jequng

‘1T Jaquiardag uo Bunaaw |epueuly a8ues Juo| 1e passnas|p g oL ST/ET/8
pJeog 03 susisap Juasaid — suejd MaIA3L 03 /7 JO }am ade|IA yum Buizeaw dn 18s — 8T/0E/S 12yd.e
YHm 3aw - |udy paulyap 193foad Jo adoas -- Yo uayel sajdwes 310d - 8T/8z/7 109HYDIE YyHm 13|

aduey 3uiang

*IT 49quaidas uo Suilaaw jerpueuly adues Suo| Je passnasip
aq ol '31/11/9 pieog 01 udisap jussaid — 31YdIe YUM §T/5Z/S SBunnaaw — 8T/ST/E 1991Y2Je yum 19

HUlY 89

1aqwanoN Ag uonajdwod adx3 "§T 0T/6 1084IUOD plemy
‘Juawdinba 8undaias g 1noAe| Suizijeuly ‘ST /1/9 1991YDIE YUM 1DW — 8TOTZ AR PRIR|dWO3 ||)-- 8T/6/V
3unaa JuapIsay — 8TOZ Alenuga4 pala|dwod owap -- §TOZ/T S3IN1INIS SAOWSI O] 10BIIUOD paplemy

yied quiodjoH

ssaago.d

ado]

2)epdn 122lo.d 8102
PLISIJ UOIIEdIDBY ] Yied UR|SpUnAl




vy Notionolly ¥ 4

VILLAGE OF 3 A“Z;::i:

Mundelem

Incorporated in 1909 Eric J. Guenther, Chief of Police

MEMORANDUM
To: Chief Eric Guenther

Cc: Deputy Chief Monaha
Deputy Chief Hansen

From: Sergeant Paul Dempsey Pb*25™1
Date: Tuesday, August 14, 2018

Re: Park District Report —July 2018

There were ten (10) calls for service in the area parks during the reporting period, which is consistent with park
district activity during this time of year. The majority of the calls were minor in nature and included a burglary
from motor vehicle, criminal damage to property, fraud, two found property complaints, and suspicious
persons/circurnstance/vehicles.

There were a total of 96 park checks initiated by the patrol officers during this month. There were no patterns
or crime trends discovered during this month. The numbers of calls and checks were consistent with the nicer
weather and the increase in use of the parks.

The following gives more detail about several of the calls during the reporting period:

¢ 0n07/01/18, Officer McCourt responded to Hanrahan Park for a suspicious vehicle complaint. Officer
McCourt made contact with the two occupants who advised they were just talking. Officer McCourt
detected the odor of cannabis coming from the vehicle. A search of the vehicle and the subjects yielded
negative results. The subjects were released on scene.

* On07/15/18, Officer Hurley located an occupied vehicle at Lewandowski Park after hours. Officer
Hurley spoke with the four occupants who advised they were just talking. One subject was issued an
AHO citation for possession of tobacco. All of the subjects were advised of the parks hours and were
released on scene.

¢ On07/16/18, Officer Callas responded to Mundelein Park District Office for a fraud complaint. The
compiainant advised unknawn subject(s} created two fraudulent Mundeiein Park and Recreation District
checks, with one being declined and the other being processed. No suspect information. Investigations is
assisting with the complaint.

¢ On07/19/18, Officer Schmidt responded to Memorial Park for a damage garbage can report. Officer
Schmidt located a garbage can with a broken lid near the Division street entrance. Park District was
notified.

* 0n07/19/18, Officer Hernandez observed an occupied vehicle at Scott Brown Park. Officer Hernandez
made contact with the three occupants who advised they were just talking. Officer Hernandez detected
the odor of cannabis coming from the vehicte. All three subjects were issued AHO citations for

possession of cannabis and all were released tg a parent.
Courage. Pride. Commitment.

221 North Lake Street  Mundelein, lllinois 60060 (847) 968-4600 F (847) 949-9238 www.mundelein.org/palice



s 0On07/23/18, Officer Perdue responded to Kracklauer Park for a found property report. The
complainant located a gray folding knife at the park. The knife was placed into evidence to be destroyed.

e 0On07/24/18, Officer Purdue responded to Memorial Park for a suspicious circumstance report. The
complainant advised three male subjects may be involved in drug activity. Officer Perdue issued two of
the male subjects AHO citations for possession of cannabis and they were released to their parents. The
other male subject was issued a citation for possession of cannabis and sent to branch court. All three
subjects were trespassed from Memorial Park,

e 0On07/28/18, Officer Guenther responded to Hanrahan Park for a found property report. The
complainant located a BB gun in the creek. The BB gun was placed into evidence to be destroyed.

» 0On07/30/18, Officer Callas responded to Parkview Fitness Center for a burglary to motor vehicle report.
The complainant advised unknown subject(s) took her purse out of the trunk of her unlocked vehicle,
which was parked in the parking lot. No suspect information. Extra patrol requested.

* 0On07/31/18, Officer Witt observed graffiti of two pieces of park equipment. No offender information.
Extra patrol requested.

Officers will continue to perform walk-throughs at Park View for community building efforts, especially during
open gym hours. In addition, they will continue to perform park checks at the various parks.

| have attached a copy of the July 2018 Park District reports for your review.

Please contact me if you have any questions.




To: Board of Park Commissioners
From: Bill Brolley, Golf Operations Manager

Subject: Steeple Chase Operations — August 2018

2017 Budgeted 2018

Golf Revenue (July) $212,264 $203,860 $215,811
Merchandise (July) $ 10,740 $ 14,025 $ 12,366
Food & Beverage (July) $ 34,011 $36,188 $ 34,737
Miscellaneous (July) $ 1,170 $ 17
Gift card (July) $ 3,795 $ 1,591
Total Revenue (July) $261,980 $254,073 $264,522
Golf Revenue (8/1- 8/21) $141,512 $144,280
Merchandise (8/1- 8/21) $ 6,957 § 8,152
Food & Beverage (8/1- 8/21) $ 23,729 $ 28,950
Miscellaneous (8/1- 8/21) § <714> $ <162>
Gift Card (8/1-8/21) $ 2,741 $ 2,028
Total Revenue (8/1-8/21) $174,225 $183,248
Golf Revenue (y.t.d.) $732,805 $740,126
Merchandise (y.t.d.) $ 50,520 $ 59,250
Food & Beverage (y.t.d.) $120,100 $134,305
Miscellaneous (y.t.d.) $ 15,836 $ 13,336
Gift card (y.t.d.) $ 18,327 $ 14,494
Total Rev. (Y.T.D. 8/21) $937,588 $961,511
Paid rounds (July) 4,223 4,469

Paid rounds (8/1-8/21) 2,950 2,986

Paid rounds year to date (8/21) 15,293 15,297

July was up about 250 rounds compared to July of 2017 and revenue was up about
$3,000 over 2017 and up over $10,000 over budgeted totals for the month of July. So far
in August we up 36 rounds to date and about $9,000 in revenue compared to August of
2017. Year to date the rounds are the same as 2017 which is good considering the
weather we had at start of the year from March to May. Revenue is up about $25,000 for
the year due to good merchandise sales and food and beverage sales being up over



$14,000 over 2017. At the end of July we are up over $26,000 in the overall budgeted
fund surplus bottom line.

We held the Club Championship August 4™ and 5™. We had 39 players which is about
what we had last year and more than we had the previous five years. This year we added
a one day over 65 Senior division which had 11 participants many of them from Grand
Dominion.

I had talks with Ken Miller from Abbott about bringing a Thursday night nine hole
league to Steeple Chase in 2019. The league would run from the beginning of May to the
carly part of September. It sounds like they are very excited to have Steeple Chase as one
of their courses.

The Friends of Steeple Chase Outing is Saturday, September 15™; we will be teeing

groups off both the first and tenth tees from 8:00am to 9:30 am. We will also be hosting
a High School Tournament that afternoon.

July Comparison for the past 5 vears

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Total Revenue $261,621 $256,942 $270,529 $261,980 $264,522

Rounds 4,430 4,344 4,380 4,223 4,469



MEMO TO: Board of Park Commissioners
FROM: Ron Doruff, Golf Course Superintendent

SUBJECT: Golif Course Grounds Report — August, 2018

We finally had a successful Monday morning topdressing. We topdress
approximately seven times a year. We have missed two times this year due to bad
weather (rain related). On August 20 we topdressed and just as we were finishing, it
started to rain. Not much, but it would have made a big mess if it had started raining
earlier. If you could program weather and aerifying, this would have been ideal. We
could have used a little more sun, but beggars can't be choosers. The next time we
aerify it will be the last time for the season - on September 16.

We haven't had any irrigation leaks to speak of this year but instead we have
had a lot of electrical / mechanical / computer issues, so much so that | had to bring in
an irrigation technician to check out our system. These controllers / mechanical
equipment / wiring are approximately 18 years old. The technician checked things out
and there were a few minor repairs that were needed. This will hopefully take some of
the guess work out of whether the irrigation system worked or not over night and if it
didn’t work - why not.

It's getting to be the time of the year when we think of fall projects. They are
basically the same as every year, but if you lock at them as a whole, it seems like a lot.
We have had our stumps ground and they are ready to be sodded. I'm waiting for
cooler and wetter weather so we won't have to water the areas as much. We have also
prepared other areas for sodding along the cart paths, low areas, and muskrat
damaged areas around the lakes. We removed some trees behind #3 tee and planted
the pine trees that we received from the Village of Mundelein.

Of course all of the greens, tees, and fairways need to be aerified and chemical
and fertilizer applications made. We also need to continue to work on more of our sand
traps - removing the sand and replacing it with fresh sand. All of these projects will be
worked on while keeping the course in playable condition. This is a must. We will also
be resurfacing some of the cart path areas. We are hopeful we can coordinate the
resurfacing in conjunction with aerifing the greens to keep the golfer interference to a
minimum.



To: Board of Commissioners
From: Derek Solberg, Superintendent of Buildings and Grounds

Re: Parks Department Report — August 2018

Weekly park grounds care has changed with the recent dry weather. This has allowed mowing to be
skipped for three of the past five weeks. Instead of mowing, crews have been out trimming trees and
improving landscaped areas at Asbury, Cambridge Country, Leo Leathers, Longmeadow, Orchard View,
Scott Brown and Wilderness Parks.  Another grounds project was repairing and repainting the
basketball court at Hanrahan Park,

There are a number of projects, larger and smaller, in the works or completed recently. The athletic
court construction work is underway at Community and Scott Brown Parks. The original plan to build all
tennis courts was amended to build cne tennis court and one basketball court at Community Park. The
tennis court at Community will also be striped for pickleball. At Scott Brown Park two pickleball courts
and one tennis court will be built,

MPRD and Fremont Township teamed together for the shoreline stabilization work at Wilderness Park
South. Fremont Township did the excavation work and MPRD followed with items related to seeding,
planting and restoration of disturbed areas. MPRD was on-site preparing for the work by completing
tree trimming as well as spraying and mowing the native area around the pond prior to the excavation
work. Staff from both agencies worked well together and coupled with dry weather, the project went
smoothly.

At Holcomb Park the playground equipment and other park amenities have been ordered. MPRD staff
are moving forward with the process to start site work and installation.

With the aquatics facilities at Diamond Lake Beach and Barefoot Bay both being closed during the week,
aquatics maintenance staff took the opportunity to renovate the storage shed at Diamond Lake Beach.
This work included structural improvements, new roof and new siding on the structure. The appearance
of the building is much improved and the plan is for it to last for years to come.

Through her aunt who is a Mundelein resident, the Parks Department was approached by Milena
Hanenberg, a high school student from Paris, France. Milena is interested in Environmental
Science/Conservation as a possible career and was eager to learn more. She worked with us for two
weeks while here visiting family. Primarily, she worked on projects to improve MPRD natural areas and
also shadowed Grounds Maintenance Supervisor Brian Jeske, himself an Environmental Science program
graduate, in the field.

Building maintenance staff continue to work on getting Dunbar Recreation Center running at its best.
Humidity has been an issue in the building so balancing the HVAC system is a priority. Other small
repairs have taken place under warranty. The building was deep cleaned following camp use in
preparation for before and after school use during the school year.



Memorandum

To: Park District Beard of Commissioners

From: Matt LaPorte, Superintendent of Recreation
RE: July 2018

July was the peak of a very busy summer for the Recreation Department. The month of July featured
675 campers in attendance in the Trails Day Camp program and an additional 371 participants registered
in recreation programs. This surpasses the 1,021 participants in programs from June. The summer
begins to wind down in August when summer programs, events and camps begin to wrap up and the
aguatic facilities go to reduced hours. The Recreation Department also received great news with
successful scores on their recent PDRMA Loss Control Review audits. Audits are held every four yearsif a
score of 85% or greater score is achieved. The Aquatics division scored 94.23% and the Recreation
division received a 98.69%. Last, signaling the quick change in seasons, the Fall Brochure hit mailboxes
in early August and registration for fall programs opened on August 6.

Programs
We offered three events in July. The Barefoot Bay Craft Beer Night saw 133 in attendance and produced

revenue of $2,200. Tighthead Brewery served up three varieties of their craft beers. The first Big Wheels
Race was held on July 19 under stormy skies. Thirty racers registered for this Mundelein Parks
Foundation Fundraiser. A thunderstorm during the first leg of the race resulted in a quick scramble to
move the event indoors. Staff were able to salvage the event and we received some nice publicity in the
Mundelein Review. The second Movie in the Park, featuring Cars 3, was also scheduled for the 19™,
Storms moved the event to the Dunbar Recreation Center and had arocund 90 people in attendance.

Recreation staff hosted the Lil' Lake County moms group for a playground tour and playdate on July 26.
Approximately 180 parents and children visited Longmeadow Park. Recreation staff provided games,
music and promoted Park View Fitness Center, Learning Center Preschool and Big and Little Day Care.

July featured several successful specialty camps and programs. A small plate cooking class and a Sweet
Adventures baking camp were held in the kitchen at Dunbar. Additional cooking classes are planned for
the fall, with even more in the works for the Winter/Spring Brochure. Several fitness programs including
Boot Camp, Vinyasa Yoga, Tai Chi and cycle were successfully held in July.

Trails Day Camp had a triumphant first summer at Dunbar Recreation Center. The feeling is the building
helped contribute to growth in the program. Weekly attendance was up about 11 kids per week
compared to last year. Revenue was up $14,509 from last year, reaching a 7 year high at $227,828. We
averaged 155 campers per week and even had an additional 12 kids for the 6" grade Odyssey camp.
Following the end of the camp program, Parks staff members Tony Elsasser and John Rogers, along with
Assistant Superintendent of Recreation Scott Schleiden and some recreation staff helped repair walls,
paint and ctean the Dunbar Center for the upcoming Rec Connect usage and fall program sessions.

Following the beach season, Diamond Lake Recreation Center was thoroughly cleaned the week of
August 13 in preparation for the upcoming school year. Enrollment for preschool is currently at the
same number as last year. There is an open house scheduled on August 30 at 6:00 pm. Classes begin
September 10. Staff is hopeful to get at least a few more kids before starting the school year.



With the end of summer camp, comes the start of the Rec Connect Before and After School program.
Enrollment has reached 177 participants with 92 at Dunbar and 85 at Washington School. There are
several more families expected to enroll. This is a record high for enroliment in the program. Supervisor
Cheri Rehor attended the Washington School welcome program for incoming kindergarteners and did
outreach for the Park District.

Big and Little Day Care Director Laurie Gembara has been busy preparing for the coming school year. All
of the kindergarten children have left the program, while on the other hand the two year old classroom
is nearing capacity. As a result the enrollment is very close to where it was at the start of the summer, or
put differently we have replaced all the children who left to go to kindergarten with incoming students.
Big & Little Day Care is in a great position with enrollment going into the fall.

As a way to increase participation and the likelihcod of a class running, several supervisors have teamed
up to offer classes during periods of time in which Big and Little and Rec Connect students can attend.
Examples include dance classes, Ninja Warrior, Nerf Battle and cooking programs. This is a huge help to
parents and great work by the recreation staff to respond to changes in today’s family schedules.

Affiliate sports are nearing the start of their seasons. AYSO soccer, youth baseball and girls’ softball will
all begin the last week of August. Lake County Stallions began practicing in late July, with the season
beginning August 25.

Mundelein Girls Feeder basketball is ramping up. A press release will go out in early September and yard
signs are being placed around town. Tryouts are scheduled to be held on October 21 from 2-4 pm at the
high school.

The adult summer softball league is almost complete. The only league still playing is the Tuesday night
league which is expected to finish up on September 4, due to a number of rain outs this summer. Fall
softball will begin on August 23. At this time registration is down two teams, with only 10 teams
committed. The co-rec league has been cancelled due to low interest. Tuesday will be a 6 team league
and Thursday will feature a 4 team league.

Rentals

Outdoor shelter rentals had another strong month with 17 rentals in July. Rentals continue to build at
the Dunbar Recreation Center. There was only one in July but five birthday parties were held. The
Regent Center had another strong month with four rentals for the month. New boat launches
registrations went down to 11 for the month. Last, there were two indoor pool rentals for the month.

Facilities

The number of memberships at the Regent Center has reached 378 members {245 residents and 133
non-residents) through the end of July. This time last year we were at 368 members. The recent five
year high through July was 412 members in 2015. Participation in weekly programs and exercise classes
dipped slightly with 1,305 visits, or down 80 visits from last month. Overall the center has averaged
1,344 visits each month in 2018, which is slightly off pace from last year's 1,398 manthly average.



Regent Center members and guests are heading to Wisconsin on August 21 for their next trip. Twenty-
five travelers will visit New Glarus and Monroe for cheese sampling and tours, as well as shopping
followed by lunch. Staff is working through estimates for the bathroom remodel and foyer flooring
replacement at the center. This project is taking longer than expected to bring pricing quotes together.
Estimates are expected before the end of the month, and if favorable work would be completed in
September and October.

Park View Fitness Center participation increased by 773 visits in July. A total of 9,603 visits by 1,220
unigue members were made. Membership numbers will now be reported as total members, instead of
annual vs monthly members previously reported. Current membership stands at 1,656 members which
is down slightly from last month’s total of 1,674. As noted in last month’s report, this is expected in the
summer months, especially in August and September which are typically the two slowest months in a
fitness center. Encouragingly, the group exercise visits jumped up from 1,612 participants to 1,816
participants.

In following our Department Work Plan, staff finalized the recommendations for cardio equipment
replacement and are working on final pricing. A new layout of the fitness floor has also been developed
which will improve the customer experience. Additionally, staff contracted with FGM to develop a long
range interior design plan for modernizing and unifying the lobby, hallways and fitness spaces within the
community center. Other improvements during July at the center include cleaning up the front desk and
rewiring the hallway lighting allowing for the light to remain on during the day and eliminating a dark
hallway. This has led to increased safety, a better representation of the facility and an overall
improvement to the customer experience.

The hot summer has continued through July and into August. As a result, the aquatic facilities have
approached or surpassed recent highs for season pass revenue and day pass sales from the last five
years. To date we have sold 1,779 Barefoot Bay passes, 78 Beach passes, and 164 COMBQ passes, for a
total of $124,557.25. Last year at this time we sold 1,665 Barefoot Bay passes, 82 Beach passes, and 201
COMBO passes, respectively, for a total of $116,912.85. As reported last month daily fee revenues are
all up at each of the aquatic facilities. To date, Barefoot Bay daily fee revenue is up 28% from last year
and at a five year high. The Beach is up 25% from last year and just behind the high set in 2015. Last, the
Spray Park is up 4% demonstrating a recovery from last year’'s temporary downturn. Concession revenue
is up 15.5% too. The beach is closed for the season and the Bay and Spray Park will close for the season
on Labor Day weekend.

As reported last month daily fee revenues are all up at each of the aquatic facilities, indicative of the hot
summer. To date, Barefoot Bay daily fee revenue is up 28% from last year and at a five year high. The
Beach is up 25% from last year and behind the high set in 2015. Last, the Spray Park is up 4%
demonstrating a recovery from last year’s temporary downturn. Concession revenue is up 15.5% too.
The beach is closed for the season and the Bay and Spray Park will close for the season on Labor Day
weekend.



Staffing has been difficult this summer, especially in August. Aquatics Supervisor Mike Gerton, got

creative an offered an incentive program which helped fill in shifts in the late season as the staff

returned to school. This helps us remain open as much as possible.

The aquatics team passed their PDRMA Loss Control Review with a 94% and the Bay received a 4 Star
Award from their August audit. Additionally, the Bay concessions area passed its August Health
Inspection once again. These accolades demonstrate the excellence of our aquatics staff and their

dedication to safety.

Below are snapshots of the season and daily pass revenues.

Res
$ 80,947.00
$ 76,376.50
$ 68,601.00
$ 67,580.00
$ 80,955.00

Res
$ 6,721.50
$ 5,948.40
$ 7,485.00
$ 7,525.00
$ 12,075.00

1,382.75
1,065.00
1,400.00
1,565.00
2,536.00

W N n

Non-Res

$ 34,296.00
$ 33,382.95
$ 26,653.50
$ 19,950.50

$ 40,575.00

Total
$ 115,243.00
$ 109,759.45
S 95,254.50
$ 87,530.50
$ 121,530.00

1,210.00

500.00

$
$
8 .t585.00
$
$

1,725.00

140.00

905.00
1,965.00

$
$
$  334.00
$
$

Total
7,931.50
5,948.40
8,020.00
8,025.00

13,800.00

wvr N W Wnn

1,382.75
1,205.00
1,734.00
2,470.00
4,501.00

wrnunnn

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Barefoot Bay Daily | $ 226,659.52 | $ 221,837.00 | $ 269,394.00 | $ 227,493.00 |
Beach Daily 5 711,289.76 S 12:531.00 $ 11,363.00 | S 8,989.00 $ 11,247.00
Spray Park Daily S 12,016.66 | $ 13,727.84 | $ 13,007.89 | $ 10,463.00 | $ 10,852.00




2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
BB Concessions $ 101,938.75 | $ 107,066.75 | $ 130,081.00 | S 114,106.50 | $ 131,871.50
DLB Misc. N/A N/A N/A S 2,445.00 S 2,671.00

Mundelein Parks Foundation

The Foundation balance through the end of July was $8,995.82, for an increase of $400.21 since last
month. In August we received $500 for the Rob Bush Scholarship and $423.76 from SWALCO show
recycling. Additionally, a check for $1,753.95 from the Mundelein Girls Feeder program was received
and will be used for scholarships for the Feeder program. No additional scholarships have been

requested since the last report.

Recreation Advisory Committee

The recreation advisory committee met on July 24. Meeting minutes are provided. The opportunity
exists for 2-3 more volunteers to join the committee; an advertisement has been posted around District

facilities and on the website. The next meeting is October 23 at 6:45 pm.




Mundelein Park District
Recreation Advisory Committee
Meeting Minutes

fundelein Park & R tion District

July 24, 2018

Attendance: Ron Greenburg, Daniel Juarez and staff Matt LaPorte
Absent: Julie Port, Meg Rapplean, Wendy Cohn, Bruce Ponsaran

The third meeting of the year for the Recreation Advisory Committee of the Mundelein Park and
Recreation District, was held on Tuesday, July 24, 2018 at 6:45 pm. Committee members in attendance
include: Ron Greenburg and Daniel Juarez and Superintendent of Recreation, Matt LaPorte. The meeting
was held at the Mundelein Community Center.

New Committee member Daniel Juarez was introduced. An update on the Regent Center bathroom
renovation was provided. A review of the ideas for growing membership at Park View from the May
meeting was held. A presentation on the new Park View Fitness Center membership structure took
place and feedback was provided by the Committee. The Committee also discussed the recent
reorganization of the Recreation Department and gave input on future staffing needs. An overview of
the upcoming PDRMA Loss Control Review audit was provided. Highlights of upcoming special events
where shared, along with updates from around the Recreation Department. Last, volunteer
opportunities for involvement with the District were presented.

Next meeting was set for Tuesday, October 23 at 6:45 pm.




Mundelein Parks & Recreation District
Memorandum

To: Board of Commissioners

From: Laura Erickson, Superintendent of Business Services and Technology
RE: Board Report - August 2018

Date: August21, 2018

Finance

The business services department held its first internal BS&A software training last week which provided all users
with a preview of the Accounts Payable and General Ledger modules. BS&A staff will be on-site starting in early
September to conduct training, perform configurations and assist us in our conversion. The first batch of accounts
payable Invoices that will be processed through BS&A will have a check date of 9/24. The first payroll that will be
processed through BS&A will be on 10/5.

Human Resources

Anthony Nitti completed the payrolls for the periods of 7/8/18 — 7/21/18 for 367 employees, 7/22/18 — 8/4/18 for
358 employees and 8/5/18 — 8/18/18 for 322 employees. We are recruiting for the following positions: Swim Lesson
Coordinator, Indoor Pool Swim Instructor, Athletic Program Supervisor, Dance Instructor, Fitness Instructor, Cart
Attendant, Grounds Maintenance and Seasonal positions. HR also helped coordinate and hosted the monthly
employee birthday party and the wellness event at Leo Leathers Park. Lastly, the intranet configuration is currently
underway by the consultant and has a projected roll out date of mid-October.

IT

The majority of our new access points have been installed, including those most recently at Steeple Chase and Parks
Maintenance. The final access points for Regent Center and Diamond Lake Beach are scheduled to be installed in the
coming week. A total of four new workstations are scheduled to be replaced in the coming weeks. The workstations

that will be replaced include that of the Superintendent of Buildings and Grounds, Sponsorship Cocrdinator, Fitness

Coordinator and Administrative Assistant.

Risk Management

The training topic for August is Distracted Driving. A quiz was distributed to staff for completion. Experts say that
“distracted driving is the new drunk driving”. Distracted driving includes cell phone use, texting, eating, drinking,
interaction with passengers and navigation devices. In addition, site specific training was held with RecConnect to
discuss Emergency Action Plans at Dunbar Recreation Center. The next monthly Safety Committee meeting is
scheduled for August 29",

The 2018 PDRMA Loss Control Initial Review Results:
¢ Administration: 95.60% {2014 initial review 64.86% and final score 93.02%)
e Aquatics: 94.23% (2014 initial review 72.02% and final score 95.23%)
* Recreation: 98.69% (2014 initial review 60% and final score 95.41%)

The 2018 PDRMA Loss Control Review is still underway, the remaining site visits were conducted as follows:
e Golf - August 16™ at 7:00 am
¢  Parks — August 20" at 7:00 am



Risk Management (continued)

The double-walled disposal tank for used oil and such was placed in the garage at Golf Maintenance in accordance
with our Spill Prevention Countermeasure and Containment plan. The permit process is slowly progressing. It is now
with the second division of the Office of the State Fire Marshal. An inspector has been assigned. We are waiting for
an inspection date.

Property Loss Report - None to report at this time.

Employee Injury/lliness Summary
| Jul 20 | Park View | Trying to clear a jam in a stapler, stapled left thumb | Urgent Care J

Accident/Incident Summary

Jul 13 Camp Boy, 8, running after a ball and hit arm and head against | First-aid
wall

Jul 13 MPRD Individual tried to cash a fake MPRD check PDRMA

Jul 13 BFB Junior Lifeguard felt faint during class and passed out First-aid

Jul 16 Camp Girl 9, two fingers caught in bathroom door at Dunbar. First-aid, ice pack
Indentation to fingers.

Jul 18 BFB Girl, 12, doing handstand in the main pool and hit her First-aid
chin on the pool bottom

Jul 19 Camp Boy, 11, ice pack and water given to child who was not First-aid
verbally responding {parents indicated he is on new
medicine)

Jul 19 Park View Boy, 3, running in the gym and hit head on the wall First-aid

Jul 19 Camp Girl, 9, going down steps on the playground slipped and | First-aid
fell, hitting her head

Jul19 BFB Boy, 11, jumped over another child in the pool and First-aid
bumped his head

Jul 23 Camp Boy, 11, running and hit bar on the playground with the | First-aid
top of his head

Jul 26 Camp Boy, 11, caught with cough syrup and wine in water Dismissed from
bottle Camp

Jul 31 Camp Girl, 8, hit head on a metal pole First-aid

Aug 2 Camp Boy, 8, fell and tripped on green lily pads on the DRC First-aid
playground. Skinned shin and bumped head

Aug 3 BFB Girl, 7, child hit her head with another child while First-aid
wearing goggles, laceration to right eyelid and
cheekbone

Aug 3 KDS Girl, age not avail, in Leaps and Turns program dance First-aid
class bumped her head

Aug5 BFB Rec’d a phone call that a person in the park had a
firearm. MPD responded and no weapon or issue
discovered.

Aug 7 BFB Girl, 6, ran into another child and was bleeding from the | First-aid
right eye and nose

Aug 9 BFB Boy, 5, standing on bench and hit the back of his head First-aid
on the concrete, abrasion




